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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NRJER
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NRJER

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

40/F, Dah Sing Financial Centre
No. 248 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.fyleasing.com

AUDITOR

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited

(Appionted on 20 June 2023)

LEGAL ADVISERS

As to Hong Kong law
Sidley Austin

As to PRC law
Beijing Tian Yuan Law Firm

As to litigation advisor

Guangdong Huatu Law Firm

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
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Agricultural Bank of China Limited
Bank of China Limited

HONG KONG H SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

*

If there is any inconsistency between the Chinese names of the
entities, companies or legal entities incorporated in the PRC and
their English translations in this annual report, the Chinese names
shall prevail. The English translations of the Chinese names
of such entities, companies or legal entities are provided for
illustration purposes only.
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFBEHE

Summary of the Group's results, assets, liabilities and equity for the ~ NEBRNBEREMMEENESE L& BER
last five financial years is set out below: EREENT
RESULTS E 45
For the years ended 31 December
BZ12A3MALFE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
2023%F 20225 20214 20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTRT ARBTR ARBTR AR®BTRT AR®TRT
(Restated)
(RE7)
Revenue s 60,364 29,501 43,095 103,844 152,631
Profit/(loss) before FRFrS LAl
income tax swH, (E8) 4,087 (38,753) 20,236 5,909 48,716
Income tax (expensel/credit FTEHi (R ), K% (3,458) 6,058 (5,305) (2,670) (12,655)
Profit/(loss) for the year FmF(E8) 629 (32,695) 14,931 3,239 36,061
Basic earnings/(loss) gRaEHN, (EBE)
per share (RMB) (AR¥TT) 0.01 (0.08) 0.04 0.01 0.10
HIGHLIGHTS OF CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED fHAGFEHBEMRRAREE
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
2023%F 20225 20214 20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARB®TR ARBTR AR®BTRT AR®ETRT
(Restated)
(e&E51)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ~ BEKMAE
Total assets BEMAE 486,549 511,630 553,156 914,055 1,405,572
Total liabilities BEesE 35,743 61,143 77,569 454,790 931,579
Total equity ERRRE 450,806 450,487 475,587 459,265 473,993
Non-controlling interests JEVERR A 6,961 11,531 = = =
Equity attributable to RNABIESFEE A
equity holders of JE(a#E R
the Company 443,845 438,956 475,587 459,265 473,993
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREWE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors [the "Directors”)
of FY Financial (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (the "Company”], | present the
annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”] for the year ended 31 December 2023 (the "Reporting
Period”) to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholder(s)").

In 2023, although the COVID-19 pandemic has gradually subsided,
the global political and economic environment continued to be
volatile, and the overall business environment remained sluggish.
The Group's finance leasing and factoring business, which serves
small- and medium-sized enterprises, continued to be cautious
by adopting prudent financial management strategies and
strengthening risk management measures to ensure the safety of

funds.

In 2023, the Group's new business, the energy storage business
segment, also faced tremendous competitive pressure in the
industrial and commercial energy storage market due to intensified
market competition. In this regard, the energy storage business
adopted a model that combines regional sales and industry sales
to develop the market and actively look for business opportunities.
Moreover, the Group's another new business, the 5G base station
business segment, has experienced sluggish growth in the number
of new stations and business volume due to a slowdown in the
construction of new 5G base stations. The Group mainly focused on
optimizing the operation of its existing assets and enhancing the

operation quality and efficiency of its 5G base stations.

Looking forward, the Group remains cautious and optimistic about
its long-term business prospects. The Group will continue to give top
priority to prudence to ensure the sustainable, stable and effective

development of its business and operations in 2024.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all of our
employees for their dedication and express my gratitude to the

Shareholders and our customers.

Li Peng
Chairman
27 March 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W RO

MACROECONOMIC OVERVIEW

In 2023, the global economic recovery had gained traction,
but challenges remained. Amid the escalated Russia-Ukraine
conflict and Middle East conflict, prices for energy and other
commodities continued to rise, pushing the already high global
inflation up. Geopolitically, tensions undermined financial
stability, while the risk of armed conflict disrupted global
supply chains and increased operating costs. In addition, trade
wars and protectionism raised invested costs and restricted

market access.

The Group's financial leasing and factoring business mainly
focuses on providing services for small-and medium-sized
enterprises to provide them with funding support. In 2023, in
the face of a complex and volatile external environment, SMEs
in China continued to face challenges from the rising costs
of raw materials and labor. Their demand for funds reduced
and risk exposure increased. Under an increasingly tough
business environment, increasing operational risks, and rising
corporate governance requirements and regulatory landscape,
resulting in a continuous decline in business volume and
demand for funds from our potential customers, which in turn
led to a significant decline in business volume and revenue
of the Group’'s financial leasing business. Fortunately, the
business volume and revenue of the Group's factoring business
are continuing to recover. In addition, thanks to the Group’'s
forward-looking decisions during the pandemic period, the
Group has continued to strengthen its risk management and
overdue asset collection efforts during the pandemic period.
With a sound financial position and sufficient cash reserves, the
Group's business operations were effectively supported after

the pandemic.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERENERE

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. E4E g & E CEI) D BER AT

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

During the Reporting Period, the total revenue realized by the
Group was approximately RMB60.36 million, a year-on-year
increase of 104.62%; the net profit recorded was approximately

RMBO0.63 million, achieving a turnaround.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of financial
leasing, factoring and advisory services, customer referral
services, the supply of medical equipment, 5G base stations
and energy storage business in the PRC.

During the Reporting Period, the Group adopted prudent
financial management strategy for its financial leasing and
factoring business and sought clients with sound financial
background, good repayment history and specified purpose
of funds through leveraging on its strength in resources. The
unsatisfactory business environment increased the default risk
of SMEs, thus the financial leasing business of the Group had
experienced a constant decline. However, benefiting from the
change of strategy, the performance of factoring business kept
improving as mirrored by a recovering trend in its business
scale and revenue.

During the Reporting Period, in respect of the energy
storage business, with the release of battery supply and the
intensification of competition in the energy storage market,
the Group also faced tremendous competitive pressure in the
industrial and commercial energy storage market. During
the Reporting Period, the Group's energy storage business
adopts a combined model of regional sales and industry
sales. Regional sales focuses on regions of rapid economic
growth such as Zhejiang, Jiangsu, and Guangdong. Industry
sales focuses on industries such as new energy, smart
manufacturing, and communication, actively seeking business
opportunities. The first and second phase of production
base for energy storage completed, with an annual capacity
of 100 MWh. Besides, certain research and development
for energy storage products had been completed, covering
various systems such as commercial energy storage systems
of two series of air-cooled ACES and liquid-cooled ACEF,
containerized liquid-cooled energy storage system, intelligent
energy storage battery packs for AEP series, distributed
energy management system for ACEP series. With the listing
of such products, the competitiveness of the Group was thus
enhanced.

A Ay e
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB RS

During the Reporting Period, in respect of the 5G base station
business, amid the complex and volatile market environment,
and with the gradual promotion and application of 5G
technology, the Group's 5G base station business experienced
a slowdown in the construction of new stations. As a result,
the growth in the number of new stations and business
volume of the Group’s 5G base station business was sluggish.
During the Reporting Period, the Group mainly focused on
optimizing the operation of its existing assets and enhancing
the quality and efficiency of its operations. The Group enhanced
asset utilization and customer satisfaction through refined
operations and innovative service models. It is based on (i) the
reduction of costs required for the operation and maintenance
of base stations by optimizing resource allocation; [ii] the
simplification of management for base station equipment
maintenance, network security, and subscriber services;
and (iii) the prevention of potential value loss of base
stations as their value is expected to gradually decrease
with the ever-improving technology and more competition
in the market. The Group is actively searching for potential
purchasers and negotiating for the disposal of the 5G base

station business and related assets to potential purchasers.

In addition, in relation to corporate governance, the Group
had continued to improve and strengthen its management.
Meanwhile, due to the expansion of new businesses, i.e. energy
storage and 5G base station business segments, the Group
had placed higher requirements on its corporate governance.
In its daily operations during the Reporting Period, the Group
paid particular attention to the popularization and promotion
of the concept of compliance. The Group also proactively
communicated with all parties, and made adjustments and
learned from various aspects, whether in its daily business or
regular reports. These measures have promoted an in-depth
understanding and the practice of the concept of compliance
from top to bottom in the Company, and made the business

development of the Company more standardized.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE RO

lll. PROSPECTS

Due to the complexity of the international political and
economic situation, the recovery of the world economy
is likely to remain sluggish. Looking forward, the Group
remains cautious and optimistic about its long-term business
prospects. The Group will continue to be cautious and
adopt a prudent financial management strategy to ensure a
sustainable, stable and effective development of its business
and operations in 2024. Through the Group’s advantageous
resources, it will also identify customers with sound financial
backgrounds, good repayment histories and clear uses of
funds, so as to ensure the long-term and stable development
of the Group and create the best value return for the
Shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

REVENUE

During the Reporting Period, the revenue of the Group amounted
to approximately RMB60.36 million, representing a increase of
approximately 104.62% from approximately RMB29.50 million for the
same period of last year. The increase in revenue was mainly due to

the increase in income from the energy storage business.

GROSS PROFIT

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s gross profit amounted
to approximately RMB18.38 million, representing a increase of
approximately 45.99% compared to approximately RMB12.59 million
for the same period of last year. The increase in gross profit was
mainly attributable to the increase in income from factoring business

and the higher gross profit margin of factoring business.

COST OF SALES

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s cost of sales amounted
to approximately RMB41.98 million, representing a increase of
approximately 148.28% compared to approximately RMB16.91
million for the same period of last year. The increase was primarily
attributable to the increase in sales costs of energy storage business

during the Reporting Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W RO

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

During the Reporting Period, the Group's other income and gains
amounted to approximately RMB10.94 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 9.87% from approximately RMB12.14
million for the same period of last year. The decrease was mainly due

to a decrease of tax refund.

OPERATING EXPENSES

During the Reporting Period, the Group’'s operating expenses
amounted to approximately RMB9.36 million, representing an
increase of approximately 61.10% from approximately RMB5.81
million for the same period of last year. Such increase was mainly
due to the increase in sales force and the corresponding increase in

expenses during the reporting period.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s administrative expenses
amounted to approximately RMB24.88 million, representing an
increase of approximately 17.17% from approximately RMB21.23
million for the same period of last year. The increase was mainly due
to an increase in corresponding administrative expenses as a result
of an increase in the number of staff in the energy storage business
and an increase in changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss.

IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

During the Reporting Period, the Group's provision for reversal of
impairment loss on financial lease receivables, accounts receivable
and amounts due from related companies was approximately
RMB10.21 million, representing a decrease of approximately
126.69% from impairment loss on finance lease receivable,
accounts receivable and amounts due from related companies of
approximately RMB38.25 million for the same period of last year.
The decrease in impairment loss on account receivables was mainly
due to the decrease in total account receivables as a result of the
settlement by customers upon the expiry of certain past projects and

the reversal of the provision made for account receivables.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE RO

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

During the reporting period, the Group's income tax expense
amounted to approximately RMB3.46 million, representing an
increase of approximately 157.08% as compared to the income tax
credit of approximately RMB6.06 million for the same period of
last year. Such increase was mainly attributable to the increase in
overprovision in prior years and credit for deferred tax within one

year.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group's income and expenditure during the Reporting Period
were principally denominated in RMB and most of the assets and
liabilities during the Reporting Period were also denominated in
RMB. During the Reporting Period, the Group did not experience any
material impact or difficulties in liquidity on its operations resulting
from the fluctuation in exchange rate and no hedging transaction or
forward contract arrangement was made by the Group.

FINANCIAL LEASING OPERATIONS, FACTORING, AND
RELATED CREDIT RISK

The Group’s major credit risk mainly arises from financing lease

receivables and factoring receivables.
Financial Leasing Operations

The Group mainly provide two types of financing leasing services
to its customers, namely direct financing leasing and sale and
leaseback, including (i) new product direct leasing, which involves
the leasing of new equipment purchased by the Group; (ii) new
product leaseback, which involves the leasing of new equipment
purchased by its customers from equipment suppliers prior to
leasing transactions; and (iii) used product leaseback transactions,
which involves the leasing of used equipment owned by the Group's
customers and sold to the Group prior to leasing transactions. The
Group may require additional collateral or guarantees from lessees
and third parties for all finance lease transactions to better protect
them against credit risks. Such additional collateral or guarantees
include: (i) joint and several guarantees by the lessee’s legal
representatives, major stakeholders, related party companies, and
third party companies; (i) mortgages of production equipment, real
estate, or account receivables; and (iii) mortgages of the lessee’s
shares in the company.

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. B & ECEI) XKD ERA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W RO

Factoring

In respect of the Group’s factoring business, it provides financing
and receivables management services to its customers in exchange
for interest and management fee income. The Group's customers
are required to transfer it the legal title to the receivables to the
Group. Upon such transfer, the Group has the right to collect the
outstanding amount of the receivables from the buyers [i.e. the

debtors of the receivables).

The Group's financing leasing and factoring business mainly focuses
on small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs] through providing
financial support to enterprises. Its customers come from the fast
moving consumer goods, electronic products, alternative energy,
medical, transport, construction, decoration, property development

and machinery parts processing industries.
Internal Control Procedures

In the course of carrying out the above businesses, the main
processes of the Group's credit risk management system are set out

below:

Risk management measures for

IRIBEFRE

RAKBNRERBM S - HATPRERE RE
WIR R E R ARTS - MBI B REEEWA - K&
B 10 P AR AR B R H IR AR E PR A
- NBERERER  AKREHRERE (AEKIR
FEOBEIEA) Y ER B IR SRR (8 IR S B AV AE R o

AEERERERRBER T EE G/ N EERM
R REXREHRESXHF - BEFEEAREEE
o BFEM - BREER  BE  BH - 2%
K - FHERZEREMEEHFNITE -

R EREFIE T

KRR DG EBRIED AEEEERREEER
MEZREZWT -

different stages of a project Responsible department(s) Functions

HE BRBRNEREERE BEERF BRE

Initiation and Internal Review e Business Department e Conduct preliminary assessment
YIERAREE o EIGEP o ETIZEHA

Due Diligence e Business Department e Conduct due diligence into background and

e Risk Management Department

o
g
it

Sy
o AREERE

creditworthiness of customer, guarantor,
equipment supplier and/or underlying
debtor

e Submit proposal(s) to committee(s] at
higher level

o HEF  BRA - REHERELEEE
BANE R RERRVETERRE

s MEFEZBSERGEZE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE RO

Risk management measures for

Functions

BRE

different stages of a project Responsible department(s)

HE BRERE R EEEE BEERM

Project Assessment and e Risk & Investment Committee
Preparation e Project Approval Committee

HEHERER s ERIEIRERES

s HEFEMNZES

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. E4E g & E CEI) D BER AT

Risk & Investment Committee principally

reviews and approves:

- finance lease projects exceeding RMB10
million and/or involving new industry

- factoring projects exceeding RMB5
million and/or involving new industry

Project Approval Committee principally

reviews and approves:

- finance lease projects not exceeding
RMB10 million and
not involving new industry

- factoring projects not exceeding RMB5
million and not involving new industry

Rk EEEaT2EE MUE

- SHEEBARKI0EELR PR
FITRMBERERE

— SEEBARKSABITR S0P RITE
TTRNRIEIER

HEBHEZESTEEERIE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W RO

Risk management measures for

different stages of a project Responsible department(s) Functions
HE &ERNEREEER BEBM BRE
Signing and Closing e Business Department e Draft, review and execute contracts

e Asset Management Department e Prepare and submit project documents [if
e Finance Department bank finance required)
e Complete registration of assets and
collateral

e Purchase insurance

FHIRTERK o EIGEP o BE  EERBIEH
o BEEHER o WENMERIABR XM
o BB (EFERTRE)

o TREENMEWMER
o HEBRR

Portfolio Management and e Business Department e Monitor customer’s payments, financial
Monitoring e Risk Management Department condition and operations

e Asset Management Department e Conduct monthly assessments

e Finance Department of assets
HeEENEE o XS o ERTFTFPHMNKIBN - MBHRRK
o REREER =8
o BETHER o ETAEEERE
o HTEHER
Risk Management and e Business Department e Enforce collateral
Enforcement Measures e Risk Management Department e Extend repayment schedule

e Asset Management Department e Transfer non-performing assets

Ja\fa B 3 % 5 5 e o XI5 o HHEM M EREXGR F 5 1
c AREERE o ERENEE
o BEEHER s BEEITREE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE RO

The Group develops and implements certain risk management
procedures in order to mitigate its losses. After on-site visits to
see a customer with overdue payments, the Group usually tries to
negotiate with the customer to revise repayment terms, including an
extension or adjustment of the customer’s repayment schedule, or
a return and disposal of the Group's leased equipment. If the Group
is not able to agree with its customer on the revised repayment
terms, it would typically undertake other risk management
procedures. The Group’s business department, asset management
department and risk management department are primarily
responsible for implementing these procedures. Such procedures
include conducting on-site inspections, sending letters of demand
for payment after the scheduled repayment date, initiating legal
proceedings against its customers and their guarantors to recover
payments, and taking enforcement actions in respect of the

collateral and/or guarantee, including:

. disposal of the leased equipment (for finance leases) and/or

collateral through sales or auction;

. claims against the guarantor(s) and/or the underlying debtor

(for factoring);
. acceleration of repayment; and

o application for court orders to seize the assets (including real
property, personal property, and securities) of the customer

and/or guarantor(s), and to block their bank accounts.

In addition to the above risk management procedures, the Group may
also consider transferring its non-performing assets to third parties
such as asset management companies and private equity firms in the
PRC.

AMOUNT OF RECEIVABLES RELATED TO FINANCING
BUSINESS AND FACTORING

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’'s receivables from financing
leasing as well as sale and leaseback transactions (“Financial
Leasing”) amounted to approximately RMB49.19 million in total,
factoring receivables with recourse (“Factoring”) amounted to
approximately RMB195.55 million in total, and the total principal
amount was approximately RMB244.75 million. Other details are
set out in Note 19, Note 20(a), Note 20(b), and Note 41 in the section
headed Credit risk of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W RO

TOP FIVE BORROWERS AABERA
The following table sets out the major terms, amounts, and TRIIEAEBEFAZERASENEZBER &
proportions of each of the Group's top five borrowers: BERAEEIBR
Principle Percentage
Interest rates, terms, maturity dates, amount as at 31 of principal
Receivable type and guarantees obtained December 2023 amount
20235
12A31H G EHE
PR E R ME - R HHARIREHER FEH B
RMB' 000
AR®TR
Customer 1 Factoring 10% of the annual interest rate, for a 31,000 12.67%
period of one year as of 15 June 2024, and
guaranteed by Wei Xiaopeng.
BRI PRI FERE10% - BZE2024F 6158 BH—
F o BB ISREER
Customer 2 Factoring 10% of the annual interest rate, for a 30,000 12.26%
period of one year as of 18 May 2024, and
guaranteed by Lu Jian and Zhang Jialu.
EF2 PRI FERE10% - BZE2024F57 188 BH—
F o AERIKRERRHER -
Customer 3 Factoring 12% of the annual interest rate, for a 28,000 11.44%

period of three year as of 18 June 2025,
and guaranteed by Wang Fuhan (E &%
#2), Zhang Bowei (3R 1&1&), Ying Wen
(FE3C), Xu Lihong (fREBHL), Shanghai
KYMS Cloud Technology Co., Ltd., and
Shanghai Bolifen Information Technology
Consulting Center.

EF3 RIB FRZE12% - BZE2025F6F18H RE=
F o BIHR  REE - B REL
PERZGEBEMERNABRAT R LE
BHRIZEBRRRE AP OREIER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE RO

Principle Percentage
Interest rates, terms, maturity dates, amount as at 31 of principal
Receivable type and guarantees obtained December 2023 amount
20235
12A31H IEAREH
il € 7% il FZE - R - BH A RESHIER T Bok
RMB' 000
AR%T T
Customer 4 Factoring 10% of the annual interest rate, for a 28,000 11.44%
period of one year as of 21 December
2024, and guaranteed by Chen Youxin {3
BE).
P4 R¥2 FHIR10%  BE2024F 128218 58—
F - ARKFTIREER -
Customer 5 Factoring 10% of the annual interest rate, for a 22,900 9.36%
period of two years as of 31 August 2025,
and guaranteed by Gong Liang.
5 REE FFIE10%  #ZE202598 4318 AHM

F - AESREHEER -

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. B &HE CGEI) XKD R A 7



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W RO

PROVISION FOR CREDIT LOSSES ON FINANCING LEASE FiEiHERWIZREEERS 2 EEEER
RECEIVABLES AND FACTORING RECEIVABLES ]

The following table sets out the Group’s provision amount for  FRAFIHAEEFIETEEERES ERRIEE
financial leasing losses and factoring losses. BRESEBR -

As at 31 December 2023

R2023512831H
(Reversal of
impairment loss)
impairment
loss recognised
Net carry during the
Gross Loss allowance amount  Reporting Period
REERR
BRH
(HEBRRE)
e BREE fREFE REER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT AR¥TR ARBTT
Financing lease Financing lease receivables 18,857 10,627 8,230 (2,678)
MERE RERERYA
Receivables from sales- 30,336 25,404 4,932 264
leaseback
ERBRRHRKIE
Factoring Factoring receivables 195,549 9,398 186,151 (6,478)
wE RIEEWHIR
Total 244,742 45,429 199,313 (8,892)
Ait

Other details are set out in Note 19, Note 20(a), Note 20(b), and Note 41in ~ BREEMFF B EH NGRS M B HREMFE19 « Kl st
the section headed Credit risk of the Consolidated Financial Statements.  20(a) * By5E20(b) M4 1EE R —ED -

BASIS FOR EVALUATION OF LOSS PROVISIONS EiERETERE

Details are set out in the section headed Credit risk of Note 41 to the ~ BRAFFIBEHNERE P BRKRMZTLEERR —F -

Consolidated Financial Statements
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE RO

CHANGES IN TOTAL LOSS PROVISIONS R EABEEHER

Details are set out in Note 19, Note 20(a) and Note 20(b) of the HEEFIFHRGEAMBERRMIT9 - MzE20(a) &
Consolidated Financial Statements. Bf¥20(b) °

TREASURY MANAGEMENT EEFER

During the Reporting Period, there was no material change in the RIREHAN - REEEE REFRERL EEKE
Group’s funding and treasury policies. The Group had a sufficient &) - AEBEZHE THMIRE MIRTTRER —REKR
level of cash and banking facilities for the conduct of its operation in 2B HER -

the normal course of business.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES RBEERERER

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A3MALEE

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB' 000 RMB' 000

AR®TR AR®TR

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRE2RIREEEY 62,263 182,949
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating #X2 EE)(FTH ), FT{SIR & 55

activities (94,736) 108,282
Net cash used in investing activities KREZBMARESFE (13,605) (74,707)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BMEEB(FTA),Fi5

financing activities WEIFRR (12,345) 1,025

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. B &HE CGEI) XKD R A 7



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W RO

As at 31 December 2023, the Group recorded total current assets
of approximately RMB329.73 million (2022: RMB337.49 million); the
Group's current ratio was approximately 10.37 (2022: 6.44); and the
Group's gearing ratio [calculated as total liabilities divided by total

assets) was approximately 7.35% (2022: approximately 11.95%].

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of the Group’s bank
borrowings repayable within one year amounted to RMB5.00 million
and the fixed interest rate of such bank borrowings was 3.2% per
annum (2022: Nil).

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any asset charges
(2022: nil).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 86 employees (2022: 48
employees], and employee expenses amounted to RMB14.09
million (2022: RMB10.42 million). Salaries, bonuses and benefits of
employees and Directors are determined with reference to market
terms and performance, qualifications and experience of individual

employees and Directors.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any significant

acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

20235 12A31H - A"EEHBSRBEERLTELD
AR¥32973E BT (2022F + AR¥337.49H
BL) ANEBEZREEEAH1037(20224F -
6.44)  AEBZEEAGBLR(AREERINEE
EEFTE ) #97.35%(20224F = #711.95%) °

MR2023F12A31H » AEB—FANEENIRITE
EREmSBEAARES00EET  ZBTEEETE
FHEE3.2%(20226F : #E) o

HEE

R2023F 12 A31H - AEBMEEAIRLEEE
(20224 : #E) -

BERFHMEE

M20236F12A318 - XEEH86EEE (2022
F:48%EE) MEERAIAARKEILOOBE
TL(2022% : ARM1042B8ET) - ETHBES
& FEAL RSB T2 E WIS KA ERER] S T
EEMERE ARRKKBRMET -

ERRBHHESE

RS HA - ANEE I B AT B AU A K &
BAR - BERARRAEREEZER-
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE RO

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

The Group’s investment strategy or significant investments include:
1) investments that would enable the Group to indirectly engage in
the industries with rapid development momentum and broad market
prospects, which will bring investment returns and revenue to the
Group; and 2] investments that would enable the Group to explore

potential business cooperation opportunities.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, details of the following
significant investments held by the Group, which represent 5% or

more of the Group's total assets, are set out below:

EXRE

AEENRERBERBARERE + 1)BEASHE
EEAEZ2BARREERD A NEATISIIRA
TTENRE - EMAAEEFHIKE DR L
R2)BEEARERRBENETEIERENRE -

HE2023F12A31BLLEE - AEEFEUA TG
NEBEEES %A EHEBRIEEHBOT ¢

Investment in an associate REEE N RNIRE
As at 31 December 2023 For the year ended 31 December 2023
R2023512831R BEWRE12ANALER
Approximate
percentage of
Approximate the carrying
percentage of amount of Share of (loss)
Number of shares held the Group's Carrying profit of Dividend
Name of investment Investment cost shares held in investees total assets amount anassociate income
FEERERN Er%E
e hgE hHE
REEH RERA Kheg BREMM BOEDL REE 2aE(ER)RR REKA
(RMB ‘000 (shares) (%) (%) (RMB ‘000 (RMB ‘000) (RMB *000)
(ARKTT) (R) (%) %) | (AREFR) (ARETR) (ARETR)
Investment in an associate
- Shanghai KYMS Cloud Technology Co., Ltd. 50,000 12,626,262 20.81% 10.28% 50,806 (1,010] =
H-BREATLRE
- B AREHAR AR

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. B &HE CGEI) XKD R A 7



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERE ERE

Financial assets at FVTPL

BRAFEFAEGNERMEE

As at 31 December 2023 For the year ended 31 December 2023
023128318 BENNBENANALEE
Approximate
percentage of
Approximate the carrying
percentage of amount of
Number of shares held the Group's gain (loss) of Dividend
Name of investment Investment cost shares held in investees total assets Fair value fair value income
FRERES HRER
Ll BEE AYENE
REEH RERE KRHE BaADL AR AYE (E8) REKA
(RMB *000) (shares) (%) (%) (RMB *000) (RMB *000) (RMB ‘000
(AR®TT) (&) (%) %) | (ARETR) (ARETR) (ARETR)
Zhuhai Huihe Guangjing Chuangye Investment Fund, L.P 30,000 N/Ax* 28.27% 6.17% 12,382 1,262 =
GEECRAAERALL(BRAY) )i
Beijing Shuncheng Health Investment Fund, L.P. 30,000 NJA¥* 9.9% 8.17% 24,505 (5,460) -
TRIBERRRE RS (ARA) NER™

* From which RMB15.00 million has been paid, while RMB15.00  *

million remains unpaid.

**  Represents RMB30,000,000 out of the total capital commitment of ~ **

RMB106,120,000.

**#*  Represents RMB30,000,000 out of the total capital commitment of ~ ***

RMB303,000,000.

HEAARMI15.008EITES T - lARE15.00

BETIARZ -

REZEEFAIEAEFEA R ¥ 106,120,000 F

#IA B HE30,000,0007T °

REKZ BB AR AIEREEEA R H303,000,0007C+

#IA R HE30,000,0007T °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE RO

Information regarding Significant Investments
Shanghai KYMS Cloud Technology Co., Ltd.*

Shanghai KYMS Cloud Technology Co., Ltd.* ("KYMS"] is principally
engaged in the leasing of serviced offices and provision of supporting
value-added services. Given the current business development and
management needs, KYMS intended to further adjust the current
strategic planning, improve the operation situation and improve
the company's decision-making efficiency, so as to promote the
sustainable development of KYMS. Upon careful consideration, it
submitted an application for delisting of its shares from the National
Equities Exchange and Quotations System, and the National Equities
Exchange and Quotations Co. Ltd. had decided to terminate the

listing of its shares, with effect from 26 December 2023.

Zhuhai Huihe Guangjing Chuangye Investment Fund, L.P.*

Zhuhai Huihe Guangjing Chuangye Investment Fund, L.P.*
mainly invests in unlisted enterprises in artificial intelligence,
new generation information technology, biomedicine, intelligent
manufacturing and other fields, sectors or industries. In China, these
industries are regarded as sunrise industries with rapid development

momentum and broad market prospects.

Beijing Shuncheng Health Investment Enterprise (Limited
Partnership)*

Beijing Shuncheng Health Investment Enterprise (Limited
Partnership)* achieves investment returns through investing in
the fields of medical equipment, medical services and other health
related fields focusing on unlisted companies. The above fields
will have plenty of potential for growth as in China because these
industries are regarded as sunrise industries with rapid development

momentum and broad market prospects.

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. B & ECEI) XKD ERA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W RO

FUTURE PLANS FOR SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Group did not

have any specific plans for significant investments or capital assets.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Group had no
capital commitments which was contracted for but not yet incurred
(2022: RMB632,670).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) has
reviewed the annual results of the Group for the Reporting Period
and agreed to the accounting principle and practices adopted by the

Group.

DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).

EXAREFEREERRKETE

B EaitigEESN - FA2023F12 831 H » NREE W E
AMEAKERERNEEMTEEETE -

BEARESE

Br Falt i EESN - FA2023F 12431 H » ANEE W E
BEI BB AREENENRKIE(202F : ARK
632,6707T) °

BREES

ARREZZBE((BREEE ) CEHAKER
BEHANFERE  YRBAKEFMRRNESE
RANRER

RE

BEEeTEHRMNEIE2023F12 318 IEEEH
REARR B (20224F - &) o
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

B BEEAEREEEREE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Peng (Z=[) (“Mr. Li”), aged 60, is the chairman of the Board,
general manager, executive Director, chairman of the nomination
committee and compliance officer of the Company. He was appointed
as a Director on 28 September 2012. He also holds directorships or
senior management positions in several members under the Group.
Mr. Li obtained his bachelor’'s degree in Law from Peking University
in the PRC in July 1984. Mr. Li has extensive legal knowledge and
years of experience in corporate management. Prior to joining the
Group, he was a partner of Tian Yuan Law Firm (RIT/2RISEEFT).
From September 2012 to May 2014, Mr. Li served as a director in
China Lihe Company Limited (I&RMHBMR AT, a company listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000532). Since July
2018, Mr. Li served as an independent non-executive director in
Shanghai Yaohua Pilkington Glass Group Co., Ltd. (/&R HEE
E B PRAF]), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600819).

Mr. Weng Jianxing (7 5) (“Mr. Weng”), aged 46, is an executive
Director and risk management director of the Company. He also
holds directorships or senior management positions in several
members under the Group. He was appointed as a Director on ¢ June
2016. Mr. Weng obtained his bachelor’s degree in transportation,
master’'s degree in corporate management and doctor’'s degree in
business administration from Changsha Transportation Institute (&
W 22i@E ), Changsha University of Science & Technology (/32
T K] and Central South University (FE8AZ2) in the PRC in June
2002, June 2005 and November 2011, respectively. Mr. Weng has
more than eight years of experience in financial products and risk
management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Weng was a product
manager in Credit Orienwise Group Ltd. (ff B BHS B RE B R D
BMRAF]) and a risk control manager of CIMC Financial Leasing
Company Limited (R & FEREER AR
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Ms. Gong Xiaoting (E 1) (“Ms. Gong”), aged 41, is an executive
Director, chief financial officer, secretary of the Board and a joint
company secretary of the Company. She also holds directorships or
senior management positions in various members of the Group. She
was appointed as a Director on 12 May 2021. In addition, she is the
daughter of Mr. Gong Liang who owns 45% equity interest in Beijing
Municipality Dayuan Tiandi Property Development Co., Ltd. (3t
MRS AR ME M ER B AR ("Dayuan Tiandi’), a substantial
Shareholder of the Company. Ms. Gong obtained her bachelor’s
degree from Ohio State University in June 2005 and her master’s
degree from University of Illinois Urbana-Champaign in May 2007.
Ms. Gong qualified as a certified public accountant under The Illinois
Public Accounting Act in the State of Illinois in September 2008. Prior
to joining the Group, Ms. Gong served as a senior auditor at KPMG
LLP and an investment manager at Ningbo Shanshan Co., Ltd. (28)%
IR BR AR (‘Shanshan”), a former substantial Shareholder,
the shares of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 600884).

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Peng Qilei (EZH3Z) (“Mr. Peng”), aged 60, is a non-executive
Director and a member of the remuneration committee of the
Company. He was appointed as a Director on 12 May 2021. Mr. Peng
is currently a senior management of Dayuan Tiandi and its several
related companies. Mr. Peng obtained a bachelor of engineering
degree in automatic mechanics from Taiyuan Institute of Machinery
(KEHMEPT) in 1983, and a master of engineering postgraduate
degree from the School of Vehicles Engineering of Beijing Institute
of Technology (Jt 32 T R & TFEEFT) in 1994. He has extensive
experience in the fields of engineering and management, and served
as the general manager at Beijing Longxin Communication Cables
Co., Ltd. (JERBEFEBIEEHEMRAF). Since December 2020, Mr.
Peng has been serving as an executive partner of Zhuhai Mingrun
Guangju Technology Industry Investment Enterprise (%883 EERE
BXEXRKRERR).
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Ms. Liu Jing (£18k) (“Ms. Liu”), aged 54, is a non-executive Director
of the Company. She was appointed as a Director on 12 May 2021.
Ms. Liu currently serves as a senior executive at Dayuan Tiandi and
various related companies of Dayuan Tiandi. Ms. Liu obtained her
bachelor’'s degree from Beijing University of Chemical Technology
(HEFR{ETRE) in 1991. Ms. Liu has extensive experience in the
field of accounting and was as a financial staff at Beijing Haiyu
Industrial and Trading Co., Ltd. (At /8 E L E A R]), Beijing Zhongyu
Decoration and Renovation Products Co., Ltd. (3t A FEEARZE mEH
fmABR A A]) and Ruicheng Hotel (Fk AJBJE).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Shengwen (2| 3X) (“Mr. Liu”), aged 47, is an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the audit committee and the
chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company. He was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 21 April 2017.
Mr. Liu is a partner of Da Hua Certified Public Accountants Shenzhen
Branch and serves as an independent director of Shenzhen Tech
and Ecology & Environment Co., Ltd. DRINTIEIEERLIRIRAR D
fR/2R]), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock
code: 300197). Mr. Liu qualified as a certified public valuer and an
accountant by China Appraisal Society (Bl & EFE 1) and The
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants of the PRC in May
2000 and February 2000, respectively. Mr. Liu obtained a master’s
degree in software engineering from Yunnan University (EfA
&) in the PRC in June 2012. Mr. Liu has extensive experience in
accounting. He worked at several accounting firms. Mr. Liu was the
deputy director of Baker Tilly China Certified Public Accountants
Shenzhen Branch and the deputy director of Beijing Tianyuanquan
Accounting Firm JERKE 2 &&5HAIZEH5F) Shenzhen Branch.
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Mr. Hon Leung (38%) (“Mr. Hon"), aged 41, is an independent non-
executive Director and a member of each of the audit committee,
the nomination committee and the remuneration committee of
the Company. He was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 21 April 2017. Mr. Hon is an independent non-executive
director of China Investment and Finance Group Limited (2 El#% &k
EEEBR AT, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1226). Mr. Hon qualified as a certified public
accountant by the HKICPA in November 2012. Mr. Hon obtained his
bachelor’s degree in accounting and finance from the University of
Hong Kong in November 2007. Mr. Hon has extensive experience
in accounting. He served as an audit manager in KPMG and as a
financial manager in King & Wood Mallesons. In February 2015, Mr.
Hon founded William Hon & Co., an accounting firm, where he has

been responsible for general management.

Mr.Tong Qiang (45&) (“Mr. Tong”), aged 64, is an independent non-
executive Director and a member of each of the audit committee
and the nomination committee of the Company. He has extensive
experience in the fields of the Company Law of the People’'s Republic
of China (the "PRC"], the Property Law of the PRC and the Contract
Law of the PRC. Since August 1984, he successively served as
teaching assistant, lecturer, master tutor and associate professor at
Peking University (FABI1E 5 K 22) Law School in the PRC, primarily
responsible for the teaching and research on civil and commercial
law of the PRC and he retired in July 2020. He currently served as
an arbitrator at Shenzhen Arbitration Commission (RIIHEZ &
2], Dalian Arbitration Commission (KEHEZ B ) and Qingdao
Arbitration Commission (H&H##Z 8 ®). Mr. Tong obtained a

bachelor degree in law from Peking University in July 1984.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Mr. Zhu Xiaodong (& #E3R) (“Mr. Zhu”), aged 51, was appointed as
a Supervisor and elected as the representative of the Shareholders
on 11 August 2015, and was subsequently appointed as the chairman
of the supervisory committee of the Company (the “Supervisory
Committee”] on 12 May 2021. Since July 2003, he has been the chief
financial officer of Dayuan Tiandi, a property developer, where he
has been responsible for the financial management of that company.
Mr. Zhu obtained a bachelor’s degree in law from Tianjin Normal
University (KZEMERER) in the PRC in July 2001.
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Mr. Liu Bing (2/££) (“Mr. Liu”), aged 51, was appointed as an
employee representative Supervisor of the Company on 7 July
2015. Mr. Liu obtained a graduation certificate in audit from Hunan
University of Commerce (BiFERZFT) in the PRC in June 1995. In
addition, he obtained a price appraiser qualification certificate from
the Personnel Department of Hunan Province [(#f& ASEEE) in
the PRC in April 2001. In December 2011, Mr. Liu also became a
non-practising member of The Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants of the PRC. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Liu was
the deputy office director in Linli Development Reform and Price
Bureau (F@2 B RN EMER), the head of the audit department
of Shenzhen Shidu Industrial Company Limited (FEIITH & E
¥ B 2AF]), a risk manager in Shenzhen Zhongkezhi Financing
Guarantee Company Limited and the manager of the department of
risk management in Shenzhen Wanfeng Weiye Financing Guarantee
Company Limited (RYITTE LR EREERBR AR

Mr. Sun Luran (&) (“Mr. Sun”), aged 31, was appointed as a
Supervisor on 12 May 2021. During the period from 12 April 2016 to
12 May 2021, he was a Director of the Company taking an advisory
role in the Board in view of his knowledge in finance, understanding
in the capital and financial market and financial risk management,
which will assist the Board in evaluating and improving the internal
control and risk management systems of the Group. He joined
Shenzhen Shanhuitong as a risk control manager in May 2016 and
has been involved in risk management related work shortly after his
graduation from the University of Huddersfield in the United Kingdom
in June 2014 and March 2016, where he received his bachelor’s
degree in business management and master’s degree in finance,

respectively.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Peng (Z=[8), for details of Mr. Li Peng's biography, see

“Executive Directors” above.

Mr. Weng Jianxing (S##), for details of Mr. Weng Jianxing's

biography, see “Executive Directors” above.

Ms. Gong Xiaoting (EEE#E), for details of Ms. Gong Xiaoting's

biography, see “Executive Directors” above.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors have
any other financial, business, family and other material/relevant

relationship with each other.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

PERERRS

The Board is pleased to present the Corporate Governance Report of

the Company for the Reporting Period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group recognises the vital importance of good corporate
governance to its success and sustainability. The Company is
committed to achieving a high standard of corporate governance
practices as an essential component of high quality and has
introduced corporate governance practices appropriate to the
operation and growth of its business. The Company has applied
the principles set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG
Code’] as contained in Part 2 of Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules
(renamed as Appendix C1 with effect from 31 December 2023).

CULTURE AND VALUES

A healthy corporate culture is critical to the realization of the
Group’s vision and strategy. The Board is responsible for fostering
a corporate culture with the following core principles and ensuring
that the Company’s vision, values and business strategies are

aligned with the corporate culture.
1. Integrity and Code of Conduct

The Group stays committed to maintaining high standards of
business ethics and corporate governance in all our activities
and operations. Directors, management and employees are
required to act in a lawful, ethical and responsible manner
and the required standards and codes are clearly set out
in the training materials for all new employees and have
been incorporated into various policies, such as the Group’s
Employee Handbook that includes the Group's Code of
Conduct therein and the Group’s Anti-Corruption Policy and
Whistleblowing Policy. The Company conducts training from
time to time for the purpose of reinforcing the necessary

standards of ethics and integrity.
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2. Integrity, Responsibility, Innovation and Dedication

The Group believes that a culture characterized with
commitment to employee development, workplace safety
and health, diversity and sustainability can create a sense
of commitment and dedication to the Group, which lays
a solid foundation for a strong and productive workforce
that can attract, develop and retain the best talent, and
strengthens the innovative thinking and dedication of its
employees, thereby enhancing the Company’s efficiency. In
addition, the Company's strategies in business development
and management aim at achieving long-term, stable and
sustainable growth, as well as focus on environmental, social

and governance to some extent.

During the Reporting Period, in the opinion of the Board, the
Company has complied with all code provisions set out in Part 2 of
the CG Code, save and except for the deviation from code provision
C.2.1.

Under code provision C.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and performed by different individuals.
Presently, the Company does not have a position with the title “chief
executive officer”. The role of general manager of the Company is
to carry out the duties of a chief executive officer. Mr. Li Peng is the
chairman of the Board and the general manager of the Company.
Since Mr. Li Peng has demonstrated suitable management and
leadership capabilities along with his thorough understanding of
the Group’s business since his appointment as a Director and the
general manager of the Company in 2012 and 2015, respectively,
the Board believes that vesting both the roles of chairman of the
Board and general manager of the Company in Mr. Li can facilitate
the execution of the Group's business strategies and maximizes the
effectiveness of its operations. In addition, as all major decisions are
made in consultation with the members of the Board and relevant
Board committees, and there are three independent non-executive
Directors offering independent perspectives, the Board is of the view
that there are adequate safeguards in place to ensure sufficient
balance of powers within the Board. The Board shall nevertheless
review its structure from time to time to ensure that appropriate

action is being taken as and when appropriate.
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COMPOSITION AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD

As at 31 December 2023, the Board consisted of eight Directors,
comprising three executive Directors, two non-executive Directors

and three independent non-executive Directors.

The composition of the Board during the Reporting Period and up to

the date of this annual report is as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Li Peng (Chairman)
Mr. Weng Jianxing

Ms. Gong Xiaoting

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Peng Qile

Ms. Liu Jing

Ms. Tong Fangyan (Resigned on 30 March 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liu Shengwen

Mr. Hon Leung

Mr. Tong Qiang (Appointed on 25 August 2023)

Mr. Fung Che Wai Anthony (Resigned on 25 August 2023)

On 19 August 2023, Mr. Tong Qiang obtained the legal advice in
relation to the requirements under the GEM Listing Rules that are
applicable to him as a Director and confirmed that he understood his

obligations as a Director.

The powers and duties of the Board include but are not limited to
convening general meetings, reporting the Board's work at general
meetings, implementing the resolutions passed at general meetings,
determining the Group's business and investment plans, formulating
its annual financial budgets and final reports, formulating proposals
for profit distributions and for the increase or reduction of the
Company’'s registered capital as well as exercising other powers,
functions and duties as conferred by the articles of association of the

Company (the “Article of Association”).
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

During the Reporting Period, Ms. Gong Xiaoting and Mr. Wong
Wai Chiu were appointed as the joint company secretaries of the
Company. Ms. Gong Xiaoting is the executive Director, chief financial
officer of the Company and secretary of the Board. Mr. Wong Wai
Chiu is an associate director of SWCS Corporate Services Group
(Hong Kong) Limited and assists Ms. Gong Xiaoting in company
secretarial affairs. Mr. Wong is a fellow of The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute, a fellow of The Chartered Governance Institute
in the United Kingdom, a member of CPA Australia, a member of the
Hong Kong Trustee Association and a Certified Trust Practitioner.
Mr. Wong Wai Chiu’s primary company contact person is Ms. Gong
Xiaoting.

During the Reporting Period, both Ms. Gong Xiaoting and Mr. Wong
Wai Chiu attended not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company established three Board committees (the “Board
Committees”),
committee (the "Nomination Committee”) and the remuneration
committee (the "Remuneration Committee”] on 25 April 2017.
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee are published on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

namely the Audit Committee, the nomination

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, being Mr. Liu Shengwen, Mr. Hon Leung and Mr. Tong
Qiang. The former chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Fung
Che Wai Anthony, has tendered his resignation as an independent
non-executive Director due to his other work commitments, with
effect from 25 August 2023. Mr. Liu Shengwen, who possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications as required by Rule 5.05(2) of
the GEM Listing Rules, has been redesignated as the chairman of the
Audit Committee with effect from 25 August 2023. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee include (but are not limited to] assisting the
Board by providing an independent view of the effectiveness of the
financial reporting process, internal control and risk management
system of the Group, overseeing the audit process, developing and
reviewing the Company’s policies, performing duties in relation to
corporate governance function under code provision A.2.1 of the CG
Code and performing other duties and responsibilities as assigned by
the Board.
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During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held six meetings
to (i) review the quarterly financial results announcement and
report for the three months ended 31 March 2023; [ii) review the
interim financial results announcement and report of the Company
for the six months ended 30 June 2023; (iii) review the quarterly
financial results announcement and report for the nine months
ended 30 September 2023; (vi] review the annual financial results
announcement and report of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2022 as well as significant issues on the financial
reporting and compliance procedures, internal control and risk
management systems, and the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal audit function; and (v] to review the discloseable and
connected transactions in relation to the factoring agreement
between the Company and Beijing City Longding Huayuan Property
Development Co. Ltd. Jt R RERFEHERBEBREET AR
("Longding Huayuan”).

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of one executive Director, being
Mr. Li Peng and two independent non-executive Directors, being
Mr. Hon Leung and Mr.Tong Qiang. The Nomination Committee
is chaired by Mr. Li Peng, the chairman of the Board. The primary
function of the Nomination Committee include (but are not limited
to): (i) to assess and recommend to the Board suitable persons
for appointment as Directors, Board Committee members, chief
executive and senior management positions; (ii] in the case of
persons for appointment as independent non-executive Director,
to assess whether the person meets the criteria of independent
non-executive Director as may be defined in the GEM Listing Rules
and also to perform the annual assessment; (iii] to recommend
to the Board the succession planning for Directors, in particular
the Chairman, chief executive and senior management; and (iv) to
ensure that all Directors receive appropriate continuous training

programmes.
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During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held
two meetings to (i) review the structure, size and composition of
the Board; [ii) assess the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors to determine their eligibility; (i) review the
diversity policy of the Board; (iv) review the nomination policy; and
(v) nominate Mr.Tong Qiang to be appointed as an independent non-
executive director to the Board having considered, among others, the
size of the Board, the Board diversity, his experience and his legal

background.

The Company has adopted a nomination policy for the appointment
of Board members. Mr. Tong Qiang was appointed in accordance
with such nomination policy. The appointment of Mr. Tong Qiang was
made on a merit basis, which had taken into account the following

selection criteria in assessing his suitability as a Director:
U integrity;

o the diversity of the Board in various aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural, educational and professional
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skill,

knowledge and length of service;

. time available, interests in other parties and concerns about

the Company’s business;

o accomplishment, experience and reputation in relation to the

business of the Company and other relevant industries;

. independence;
o potential contributions to the Board; and
o any other relevant factors determined by the committee or the

Board from time to time.
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The Nomination Committee shall make recommendations to the

Board on the appointment of Directors in accordance with the

following procedures and processes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e]

(f)

(g)

(h)

to prepare a list of selection criteria based on the above criteria
to identify appropriate candidates, taking into account the

existing composition and size of the Board;

with reference to any sources it considers appropriate when
identifying or selecting an appropriate candidate, such as
recommendation of current Directors, recommendation
of headhunting companies and recommendation of the
Shareholders;

to review with individual candidates and perform background

checks;

after considering the suitability of a particular candidate
for the position of Director, the Nomination Committee will
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment by
convening a meeting and/or through a written resolution, as it

may consider appropriate;

to arrange an interview the selected candidates and members

of the Board, if necessary;

to provide information about the selected candidates to the
Remuneration Committee for considering the remuneration

package of such selected candidate;

to recommend the Board to appoint the selected candidates
as Director and the Remuneration Committee will submit the
proposed remuneration package of the selected candidates to
the Board; and

the Board will subsequently discuss and make decisions on the

appointment.

REZEEHRETIIRARREAESEERZ
TEE:

(a)

(b)

(c]

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of one non-executive
Director, being Mr. Peng Qilei and two independent non-executive
Directors, being Mr. Liu Shengwen and Mr. Hon Leung. The
Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Liu Shengwen. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include (but are
not limited to): (i) to review annually and recommend to the Board
the remuneration policy and structure for the Directors, chief
executive and senior management; [ii] to oversee the performance
evaluation of the executive Directors, chief executive and senior
management and recommend to the Board their remuneration
packages, promotions, specific adjustments in remuneration and/
or reward payments, if any; (i) to make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors and to ensure
that the level of remuneration for non-executive Directors are linked
to their level of responsibilities undertaken and contributions to
the effective functioning of the Board; (iv] to review the terms and
conditions of service of the executive Directors, chief executive and
senior management including their total remuneration package for
market competitiveness; and recommend changes to the Board
whenever necessary; and (v) to ensure that no Director or any of his/
her associates is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration. The
Remuneration Committee considers factors such as salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and

desirability of performance-based remuneration.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee held
two meetings to review the remuneration package of the Directors
(including non-executive Directors) and senior management and the
remuneration policy of the Company; and to make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration of Mr. Tong Qiang, the independent

non-executive Director.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The primary goal of the Group’s remuneration policy for executive
Directors is to enable the Company to reflect their individual
performance by a reasonable remuneration package. The
remuneration package includes basic salary, performance and other
benefits. Remuneration of the independent non-executive Directors
mainly includes the director’s fee which is a matter for the Board
to decide by reference to the duties and responsibilities of the
independent non-executive Directors and their experience.

The Group provides employees and Directors with fair and equitable
remuneration and benefits based on individual performance,
experience and market benchmarks. The Group have formulated
a set of employee performance appraisal mechanisms and makes
appropriate salary adjustments every year according to employee
performance to reduce the loss of talent.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has no share incentive
schemes.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings, Board
Committees meetings and general meetings of the Company held
during the Reporting Period is set out in the table below:

F R

AEEHNTEEFTHBRRNEZBRERALQF]
BRRESEHFMES RREFEARR - FES
BRERFHS  EUNEMERN - BIYIFRTES
MFHEIEEREFEE  MZEFESIHES
SRSEBIIFPITETHNR RBE AR EEFH

AEERBREAKRR - £RATSEE - RETH
EXREAFRAENRMNES - NEECDHIE—
EBTHRAMERET  SFRRETRAELHEE
HENFEE - SORBEAA K -

RmERA - NEELEREE S -

EENREFZEEREHFERLE

RBFEHA  SEFLEARFEFEESE  EF
ZEEERABERASNTHEENTE -

Number of meeting attended/ number of meeting held during the tenure of office

BHESRAE RNEBABETERAR

Audit Nomination Remuneration General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Name of Director EEfE 58 EVEZEE REZEE E270 PN BRRAE
Mr. Li Peng ZlexsE 13/13 - 2/2 - 202
Mr. Weng Jianxing DEEEE 13/13 - - - 2/2
Ms. Gong Xiaoting EERLTt 13/13 - _ _ 202
Mr. Peng Qilei vHErE 13/13 - - 2/2 202
Ms. Liu Jing Bt 13/13 - - - 2/2
Ms. Tong Fangyan [Resigned on 275 #201(7A2023F
30 March 2023) 3A30EEHT) 11 - - - 1
Mr. Fung Che Wai Anthony BEREE(R2023F
(Resigned on 25 August 2023) 8A25 B EHE) 9/9 5/5 1 - 11
Mr. Hon Leung BmEE 13/13 b6 202 2/2 2/2
Mr. Liu Shengwen Bk 13/13 6/ - 2/2 212
Mr.Tong Qiang [Appainted on #aa 5t 4 (R 20235
25 August 2023) 8A2BREZAT) 4fh 1/1 1/1 - 1/1
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CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL ESHEIZIIREXERRE

DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

During the Reporting Period, each Director participated in  RIFEHR  SESHXHETHEFERRE - U3
continuous professional development to develop and refresh his/her B R B SH AR EEE L - SHIBEMNT ¢

knowledge and skills, details of which are summarised as follows:

Reading

materials
regarding updates
of new rules and
regulations

RMEEBRHRAR
Name of Director EEpE ERZ BRI ER
Mr. Li Peng FExEE v
Mr. Weng Jianxing BEESEHE v
Ms. Gong Xiaoting BERERL
Mr. Peng Qilei THRZESSE v
Ms. Liu Jing Bl v
Ms. Tong Fangyan (Resigned on 30 March 2023) 435 #f 224 (74202343 A30 A BHE) v
Mr. Fung Che Wai Anthony B REIE S (7R 20234F8 A 25 A& E)

(Resigned on 25 August 2023) v
Mr. Hon Leung TR v
Mr. Liu Shengwen BIA >kt v
Mr.Tong Qiang (Appointed on 25 August 2023) KRB (FR2023F8 A25 R EZR(T) v

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS =R e (7452 T E 8

BY DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for securities ARARDHEMNEGHEESZTLRANARIES([ESE])ETT

transactions by the Directors and supervisors (the Supervisors’] #4525 177AFR([{TH5FA]) - HIERTE
of the Company (the “Code of Conduct”) on terms no less exacting  FAGEM 38855 4855 67TIKFTH 1 B & M ~F1E
than the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to ¥ « RAFBEALZEEZNEZ(EHETEH &
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Specific enquiries have been made to  EEE LKEEDEANEBERSHEH D ETITES
all the Directors and the Supervisors, and all the Directors and the  sfAI] o

Supervisors have confirmed that they have complied with the Code of

Conduct throughout the Reporting Period.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the Reporting Period, the Group at all times met the
requirements of the GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive Directors representing
at least one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related

financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company confirms all
independent non-executive Directors are independent in accordance

with the independence guidelines.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledged its responsibility of preparing the financial

statements for the Reporting Period of the Company.

The Board is responsible for the clear and fair assessment for
the quarterly, interim and annual reports and other disclosures
according to the GEM Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements. The senior management has provided the Board with
all necessary explanations and information for the Board to make
an implementation assessment of the Company’s financial data and

position and for the Board’'s consideration and approval.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditors by the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the

Reporting Period is set out as follows:

Type of services Amount of fees (RMB’000)

Audit services 740
Non-audit services* 181
Total 921

* Non-audit services include interim reviews performed during the

period ended 30 June 2023.

BAFHITES
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Z—) B EL—ZBUIFATEEAABAE
BEXRERF ST HEEN B EEEXENBORE

ARREEERBIUIFATESFRIZEGEM LM A
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# o
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BR#SE A ERAR%TT)
FEZIRA 740
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* FEERBIRIE IR E B 202346 H30 A 1 AR AT
7THY A R -

2023 ANNUAL REPORT EE 4

41



42

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

PERERRS

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the Reporting Period, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of
the Company.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

Regarding the disclosure of inside information and internal control
measures, the Company understands its duties under the GEM
Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance [the "SFO"),
and adheres to the important principle of timely publication of
inside information. The Company abides by the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” published by the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong (the "SFC”), and has developed a
complete system of internal procedures and information disclosure
policy for processing and publication of information in order to
ensure the timely, accurate and appropriate disclosure of relevant
information to the public and regulatory authorities. The Company
is required to disclose inside information as soon as reasonably
practicable in accordance with the SFO and the GEM Listing
Rules. The Company conducts its affairs with close regard to the
“Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the SFC.
The Company also included in its information disclosure policies a
strict prohibition on the unauthorised use of confidential or inside
information. The Board will determine further escalation and
appropriate handling the dissemination of inside information.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy to have a well
diversified Board by considering a number of factors, including but
not limited to gender, age, race, language, cultural background,
educational background, industry experience and professional
experience.

As at 31 December 2023, the Board comprises eight Directors,
covering different genders and has a broad age distribution and
a diverse mix of age, background, knowledge and skills. As at 31
December 2023, the Board had 2 female members out of the total 8
Board members, accounting for one-fourth of the Board. The Board
targets to maintain at least two female representation and will
consider appointing more female Directors in the future should there
are suitable candidates. The Nomination Committee considers that,
appropriate balance has been struck among the Board members in
terms of gender, skills, experience and perspectives. The Company
will also ensure that there is gender diversity when recruiting staff
at mid to senior level of the Group so that it will have a pipeline of
female senior management and potential successors to the Board in
the future.
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Age Gender Education Background
3 i33] BEER
Accounting/
Finance/
Economic
g3t/
30-45 46-65 Male Female Legal &/ Management  Others
Name of Directors ~ EZ#% 0Z45H  LF65HE 2 Tt X B 3 Hif
Li Peng %k / /
Weng Jianxing SEE / /
Gong Xiaoting e / / /
Peng Qilei vz v/ / /
Liu Jing g /
Liu Shengwen Elp'e / /
Hon Leung ) /
Mr.Tong Qiang (S
(Appointed on (R2023F
25 August 2023) 8A2AEZEA) / / /

The gender ratio in the workforce and any plans or measurable
objectives of the Company has been disclosed in “Environmental,

Social and Governance Report” in this annual report.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’'s businesses, strategic decisions
and performance and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
The Directors take decisions objectively in the joint interests of the
Company and the Shareholders. The Board has delegated to the
general manager of the Company, and through him, to the senior
management of the Company the authority and responsibility for
the day-to-day management and operation of the Group. In addition,
the Board has established Board committees and has delegated to
these Board committees various responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference. Further details of these committees
are set out in the section headed “Board Committees” in this annual

report.
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The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters relating
to policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and coordinating the daily operation and management of

the Company are delegated to the management.

All the Directors, including the non-executive Directors and the
independent non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum
of valuable business experience, knowledge and professional skill to

the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

In compliance with code provision B.1.4 of the CG Code, the Board
has resolved to adopt a Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism,
which includes various measures to ensure independent views and

input are available to the Board.

The Board shall at all times comprise at least three independent
non-executive Directors that represent at least one-third of the
Board, such that there is always a strong element of independence
on the Board which can effectively exercise independent judgement.
Each independent non-executive Director is required to provide an
annual confirmation of his/her independence to the Company and the
nomination committee of the Company is responsible to assess the
independence of each independent non-executive Director at least

annually.
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All the Directors, including the independent non-executive
Directors, are given equal opportunity and channels to communicate
and express their views to the Board and have separate and
independent access to the management of the Group in order to
make informed decisions. All Directors have full and timely access
to all the information of the Company and may, upon request, seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the

Company’s expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.

The chairman of the Board will hold meetings with the independent
non-executive Directors without the involvement of other Directors at

least annually to discuss any issues and concerns.

Any Director or his/her associate who has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board will be dealt with by a physical
Board meeting rather than by written resolutions. Such Director
will be required to declare his/her interests before the meeting and
abstain from voting and not counted towards the quorum on the
relevant resolutions. Independent non-executive Directors who, and
whose associates, have no material interest in the matter should

attend the relevant Board meeting.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of
the Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism and considered
that, during the Reporting Period, it is effective in ensuring that

independent views and input are available to the Board.

All the Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good
faith, in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in
the interest of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.
The CG Code requires the Directors to disclose the number and
nature of offices held in public companies or organizations and
other significant commitments as well as their identity and the time
involved to the issuer. The Directors have agreed to disclose their
commitments to the Company in a timely manner and the Board
regularly reviews the contribution required from each Director to

perform his/her responsibilities to the Company.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance coverage
for the Directors in relation to legal proceedings against the

Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for the corporate governance functions.
During the Reporting Period, the Board has discharged the following

corporate governance duties:

- to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on

corporate governance;

- to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of the Directors and the senior management;

- to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

- to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct applicable

to employees and the Directors; and

- to review the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report in the annual

report of the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

During the Reporting Period, the Group is committed to maintaining
comprehensive risk management and internal control systems that
enhance the Company’s overall strategy and promote the Company’s
risk control capabilities while addressing various risks, including
credit risks, liquidity risks, interest risks, operational risks and
legal compliance risks. During the Reporting Period, the Group
has implemented a comprehensive and effective risk management
system with stringent procedures and measures in place, including

multi-level assessments and approval processes.

The Company has set up an internal audit department to analyze
and evaluate the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems. The results of internal audits and reviews will be reported
to the Audit Committee and the Board. Within the scope of review on
internal control, no significant control defects have been found. The
review results have been reported to the Audit Committee and the
Board.
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The Board oversees and manages the overall risks associated
with our operations and reviews the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems at least annually. During
the Reporting Period, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of
risk management and internal control systems of the Group. The
Board considered the risk management and internal control systems
are effective and adequate in all material aspects in both design and
operations. The Board oversees the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group on an ongoing basis. The systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and provide only reasonable but not

absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Company has developed and adopted different risk management
procedures and guidelines with a clear division of power and
responsibility. The Company would conduct self-assessment each
year to confirm that all departments and the Company have properly

complied with the risk management and internal control policy.

During the Reporting Period, all departments conducted regular
internal control evaluation to identify risks with potential impact
on the Group’'s business and other aspects including major
operational and financial procedures, regulatory compliance and
information security. The risk assessment results and the proposed
internal control measures have been submitted to the senior
management and the general manager of the Company for review
and approval. The senior management and the general manager of
the Company are also responsible for supervising the effectiveness
of implementation and future execution of the risk control

measurement.
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WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

During the Reporting Period, The Board has adopted a
whistleblowing policy (the “Whistleblowing Policy”]. The purpose
of the Whistleblowing Policy is to (i) foster a culture of compliance,
ethical behaviour and good corporate governance across the Group;
and (i) promote the importance of ethical behaviour and encourages
the reporting of misconduct, unlawful and unethical behavior. The
nature, status and the results of the complaints received under
the Whistleblowing Policy are reported to the chairman of the
Audit Committee or the company secretaries. No incident of fraud
or misconduct that have material effect on the Group’s financial
statements or overall operations for the year ended 31 December
2023 has been discovered. The Whistleblowing Policy is reviewed

annually by the Audit Committee to ensure its effectiveness.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’'s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
enables the Shareholders and investors to make the best investment

decisions.

In order to promote effective communication, the Company
maintains a website at "www.fyleasing.com”, where extensive
information and updates on the Group’s business developments and
operations, financial information, corporate governance practices

and other information are available for public access.

Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or requests

to the Company as follows:

Address: Room 1603, Cheung Kei Building, No. 128 Xinzhou 11th

Street, Futian District Shenzhen, Guangdong The PRC
Email: jgzx(@fyleasing.com

Enquiries are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.
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The Board welcomes views of the Shareholders and encourages
them to attend general meetings to raise any concerns they might
have with the Board or the management directly. Board members
and appropriate senior staff of the Group are available at the

meetings to answer any questions raised by the Shareholders.

The Board has reviewed the Shareholders’ communication policy and

its effectiveness was confirmed.
Shareholders’ Rights to Propose Resolutions

When the Company convenes a general meeting, the Board, the
Supervisory Committee, or the Shareholders individually or jointly
holding more than 3% of the total number of shares of the Company
shall have the right to propose resolutions. Shareholders individually
or jointly holdings 3% or more of the shares of the Company may
submit ad hoc proposals in writing to the convener of the general
meeting 10 days before the convening of the general meeting. The
convener shall issue a supplemental notice of the general meeting
within two days upon receipt of the proposals and announce the
contents of the ad hoc proposals. If the ad hoc proposal does not
comply with Article 59 of the Articles of Association according to
the view of the convener after his/her reviewing and the convener
decides not to include this ad hoc proposal into the agenda, the
convener shall issue a notice for not including this ad hoc proposal
into the agenda within two days and specify the reasons; and at the
same time, the convener shall make explanation at this general
meeting, and make announcement on the content of ad hoc proposal
and the explanation of the convener and as well as the resolutions of

general meeting after general meeting.

Except for circumstances provided in the above paragraph, the
convener, after issuing the notice and announcement of the general
meeting, shall neither revise the proposals stated in the notice of

general meetings nor add new proposals.
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If a notice of general meeting does not specify the proposed
resolutions or does not comply with Article 59 of the Articles of
Association, no voting for resolutions shall be carried out at the

general meeting.
Shareholders’ Right to Requisite a Meeting

Shareholders requesting an extraordinary general meeting or the

Shareholders class meeting shall abide by the following procedures:

(a) Shareholders individually or jointly holding more than 10%
of shares of the Company are entitled to request the Board
in writing to convene an extraordinary general meeting. The
Board shall, in accordance with the requirements of laws,
administrative regulations and the Articles of Association, reply
with a written opinion to state whether it agrees or disagrees to
convene an extraordinary general meeting within 10 days upon

receipt of the request.

(b) If the Board agrees to convene the extraordinary general
meeting, it shall issue a notice of convening the extraordinary
general meeting within five days after the date of the resolution
of the Board. Any changes made to the original proposal in
the notice shall be agreed by the relevant Shareholders. If the
Board disagrees to convene the extraordinary general meeting,
or does not reply within 10 days upon receipt of the proposal,
Shareholders individually or jointly holding more than 10%
of the shares of the Company are entitled to request the
Supervisory Committee in writing to convene an extraordinary

general meeting.

(c) If the Supervisory Committee agrees to convene the
extraordinary general meeting, it shall issue a notice of
convening the extraordinary general meeting within five
days upon receipt of the proposal. Any changes made to the
original proposals in the notice shall be agreed by the relevant
Shareholders. If the Supervisory Committee does not issue
the notice of general meeting within the prescribed period, it
shall be deemed as the Supervisory Committee not convening
and not holding the extraordinary general meeting. Then the
Shareholders individually or jointly holding more than 10% of
the shares of the Company for more than 90 consecutive days

are entitled to convene and hold the meeting themselves.

BERASBEHMPRINFLIFAR ﬂ BEALTN
R ERIRE Hx%ji/‘T TTRARL LR

N
2
=

BRERA

SRAER

BREZRBEBRFHARGREL R RE -
BRI IIRE PR

(a)

(b)

(c]

B0 FYFINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. E4E@ &R E CEI) XD BER AT

BERXEAT A ARR0%A G B
RERMNZESSHRBARRFIAE - &
EENERFAMNESTSRE -EFQEE
BIEER - TTBUERMARERMMETE - £
WBFERZI0ARRERETRERBMAK
REMAEMNEEREER -

EZ2REARBRRBIAEN - BEE(E
HEFERFRA5A R HARBERE IR
SHEM  BAPHRERNEMAEE - &
EHGHERRNRAE -EFSTRAEARM
RERFFRIAG - HEAEWEIRERI0B AR
EHREN - EFREQAFAFAARF 0%
A EBRMEBRRARAEESREQRRR
RIS  YERENEEFAMEESRE

=
RROK e

EEeREERRREIASH - EEKE
RESHANBE L BRREFIASHREA - B
MPERBRMHIMEE - EEEEHERBR
RFMRE - BER SRR E R A T ARE
@Lﬂm’ﬁ%&EQKW%ﬂﬁﬁ%i
BRlAE  EEORNLEEBNEATER
RATN0% A ERDEIRRBEETTE S
BITKE o



CORPORATEGOVERNANCEREPORT
P

TEEIRY

POLICY ON PAYMENT OF DIVIDENDS

The Company has adopted a dividend policy to provide the Board
with a guidance to the Board on whether to declare and distribute
dividends. In order to keep sufficient reserves for the future
development of the Company, the Board will appraise its dividend
policy based on the operations and earnings, cash flow, financial
position, capital and other reserve requirements and surplus
contractual restrictions and its overall financial conditions and any
other conditions or factors that the Board considers relevant, so as
to determine or recommend dividends for any financial year and also
the number, amount and form of dividends paid. Any final dividend for

a financial year will be subject to the Shareholders” approval.

AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

During the Reporting Period, in order to reflect and align with the
latest requirements under the GEM Listing Rules in relation to
the core shareholder protection standards as set out in Appendix
A1 to the GEM Listing Rules and incorporate other consequential
and housekeeping amendments, the Company has made certain

amendments to the Article of Association.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 9
May 2023 and circular dated 11 May 2023.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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The Board is pleased to present the report of the Directors for the

Reporting Period to the Shareholders.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of financial leasing,
factoring and advisory services, customer referral services, the
supply of medical equipment, 5G base stations and energy storage
business in the PRC.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Reporting Period, the aggregated sales of the Group to
the top five customers accounted for 69.75% (2022: 58.34%) of the
total income of the Group, and the sales of the Group to the largest
customer accounted for 29.67% (2022:36.18%).

For the Reporting Period, the aggregated purchases of the Group
from the top five suppliers accounted for 93.18% (2022: 69.83%) of
the total purchases of the Group, and the purchases of the Group

from the largest supplier accounted for 39.13% (2022: 62.76%).

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors, their respective
close associates or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital
had any interest in any of the top five customers or suppliers of the

Group.

MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of major subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note

35 to the consolidated financial statements.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The annual results highlights of the Group for the Reporting Period
and the latest five financial years are set out on page 5 of this annual

report.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period as at that date are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 120 to 268

of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A review of the business of the Group during the Reporting Period
and a discussion on the Group's future business development are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 6 of this annual
report. A discussion on the key financial performance indicators of
the Group for the Reporting Period is provided in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to 25 of this
annual report. The review and discussion therein form part of this

Report of the Directors.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group during the Reporting
Period are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity in this annual report and details of reserves distributable to
the Shareholders are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Company’s reserves available for distribution as at
31 December 2023 was RMB85.19 million.
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PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in properties, plant and equipment of
the Group for the Reporting Period are set out in note 14 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

The H Shares were successfully listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange
on 23 May 2017 (the “Listing Date”]). The Company issued an
aggregate of 89,840,000 H Shares by way of public offering. From the
Listing Date to the date of this annual report, there was no change in

the share capital of the Company.

DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend a payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).

As at the date of this annual report, there is no arrangement that a

Shareholder has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

TAX RELIEF

The Directors are not aware of tax relief and exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding in the Company’s listed

securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF THE PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and to
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under Rule 11.23 of the GEM Listing Rules
during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1.

Discloseable and connected transaction with Dayuan
Tiandi

On 28 April 2023, the Company entered into a factoring
agreement with Dayuan Tiandi, pursuant to which the
Company has agreed to provide accounts receivable factoring
service for Dayuan Tiandi with a factoring principal amount of
RMB7,950,000, in return for (i) factoring interest income; and
(i) transfer of the legal title of accounts receivables created
in the ordinary and usual course of business of Dayuan Tiandi
with its lessee(s] (i.e. debtor(s) of Dayuan Tiandi) from Dayuan
Tiandi to the Company.

Dayuan Tiandi is a substantial shareholder of the Company,
and is therefore a connected person of the Company.
Accordingly, the transaction contemplated under the Factoring
Agreement constitutes a connected transaction for the
Company under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

For the details of the transaction, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 28 April 2023.

Discloseable and connected transaction with Longding
Huayuan

On 3 July 2023, the Company entered into a factoring
agreement with Longding Huayuan, pursuant to which
the Company has agreed to provide accounts receivable
factoring service for Longding Huayuan with a factoring
principal amount of up to RMB27,000,000, in return for (i)
factoring interest income; and (ii) transfer of the legal title
of accounts receivables created in the ordinary and usual
course of business of Longding Huayuan with its customer(s)
(i.e. debtor(s) of Longding Huayuan) from Longding Huayuan
to the Company for a term of two years commencing from 31
August 2023.

As Longding Huayuan is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
Dayuan Tiandi, a substantial shareholder of the Company, and
thus is a connected person of the Company.

For the details of the transaction, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 3 July 2023 and the
circular dated 14 August 2023.
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CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE BEREWN

During the Reporting Period, save as disclosed herein, there were — RREHIA - BRAERATIHTE LI - HEFE()E
no contracts of significance (i) in relation to the Group’s business  ZN/2 Bk E AT (] i B A R EL1E PR IR 58 (FE 3 R.GEM
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling =743 BIl) 5k EL(E(] T /B 2 5] 2 ol B 7K 5= () % 76548
shareholder (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) or any of its B ; 3¢ (i) gt ARARER (SR EERI B A 7)) mAEE
subsidiaries; or [ii) for provision of services to the Group by a  ERHERIEEISIAEMEALL -

controlling shareholder or any or its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS B=E

The composition of the Board during the Reporting Period and upto ~ RMEHAREZANFERHE - EESAKNT

the date of this annual report is as follows:

Executive Directors HiTEE

Mr. Li Peng (Chairman) FIEEE(ER)

Mr. Weng Jianxing SEELEA

Ms. Gong Xiaoting BREEL L

Non-executive Directors HHITEF

Mr. Peng Qilei THZEEE

Ms. Liu Jing ekt

Ms. Tong Fangyan (Resigned on 30 March 2023) 2B P+ (FR202353 H30H BHE)
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHFHTEF

Mr. Liu Shengwen BFEE

Mr. Hon Leung By e

Mr. Tong Qiang (Appointed on 25 August 2023) KRS (FA2023F8 H25 B EERF)
Mr. Fung Che Wai Anthony (Resigned on 25 August 2023) HE S (7R 20234F8 A25 A BHT)

As Ms. Tong Fangyan intends to devote more time to her other I LTREHLERREZHEFRNEALTES -
personal affairs, she has resigned as a non-executive Director with B EB{FIEHITES - H2023E3A30H E3K -
effect from 30 March 2023.

Due to Mr. Fung Che Wai Anthony’s other work commitments, he has SR EERK 2 EM TIEER - ©EHEB I IEH
resigned as an independent non-executive Director with effect from 1723 © B2023%F8 2504 »
25 August 2023.
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According to the Articles of Association, all the Directors shall
be elected by the general meeting for a term of three years and
are eligible for re-election upon expiry of their terms. Each of the
Directors (including the non-executive Directors and the independent
non-executive Directors) was either appointed or re-elected at the
Company’s annual general meeting held on 12 May 2021 or appointed
at general meeting to the expiration of the term of the third session

of the Board Committee (as the case may be).

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors, the Supervisors and
the senior management of the Group are set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS" AND SUPERVISORS’
INFORMATION

There is no change in the Directors” and Supervisors’ information
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1]) of the GEM
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors and the Supervisors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years (for those
appointed or re-elected at the Company’s annual general meeting
held on 12 May 2021) or for a term commencing from the date of the
general meeting at which his/her appointment was approved to the
expiration of the term of the third session of the Board/Supervisory

committee (as the case may be).

The term of office of the current Directors and Supervisors will
expire on 12 May 2024. The resolutions on the election of Directors
and Supervisors will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company for the Shareholders’ consideration and
approval. Details of the candidates’ biographies will be set out in the
circular to be issued by the Company in due course.

The Company has not entered into/executed any service contract/
letter of appointment with any Director or Supervisor which is not
terminable by the Company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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INTERESTS IN SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS AND SERVICE
CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

None of the Directors, the Supervisors or their respective associated
entities had a material interests, directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance (except
service contracts) concerning the business of the Group subsisted as
at 31 December 2023 or entered into with the Company or any of its

controlling companies or subsidiaries during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, there was no subsisting arrangement
to which the Group is a party and whose objects are to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors and
the management of the Group is currently in force and was in force
throughout the Reporting Period. Throughout the Reporting Period,
the Company has maintained appropriate directors and management
liability insurance cover providing indemnity against liabilities,
including liabilities in respect of legal actions against the Directors
and the management of the Group arising from or incidental to the

execution of duties of his/her offices.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or

existed, during the Reporting Period.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

During the Reporting Period, details of the remuneration of the
Directors, the Supervisors and the five highest paid individuals of
the Company are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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Emoluments paid or payable to members of the senior management

of the Company were within the following band:

BASAEN T AR AR EIRER B H0B S 1) FA
TR :

2023 2022
20235 202245
Number Number

of individual(s)

AB

of individual(s)

AB

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z%1,000,000% 7T

No Director, Supervisor or senior management had waived or had

agreed to waive any emoluments during the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS” AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors and Supervisors
had any interest in any business which was in competition or was
likely to compete, directly or indirectly with the business of the Group
which would be required to be disclosed under the GEM Listing

Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were

entered into or in existence during the Reporting Period.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Reporting Period, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities

of the Company.
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BANK BORROWINGS AND THE MATURITY PROFILE OF
BORROWINGS

During the reporting period, the carrying amount of the bank
borrowing repayable within one year was RMB5.00 million with a
maturity date of 29 October 2024, and the bank borrowing bears a

fixed interest rate of 3.2% per annum.

MAJOR RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is exposed to various risks in its ordinary course of
business, including credit risk, liquidity risk, interest risk, operational
risk and legal and compliance risk. The Group carries out risk
management with the support for sustainable development of the
business and enhancement of the Group’s value as the strategic
objectives, and has established and continually improved a

comprehensive risk management system.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group persists in maintaining good corporate governance and
operating in compliance with the laws and integrity through abidance
by relevant laws and regulations, industry regulations and business
ethics. For the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual
report, the Company has not been a party to any material legal,
arbitral or administrative proceedings, and the Company was not
aware of any pending or threatened legal, arbitral or administrative
proceedings against the Company or any of the Directors which could
have a material adverse effect on the Group's operations or financial

condition.

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

During the Reporting Period, to the best of the information,
knowledge and belief of the Directors after making all reasonable
enquiries, the Company was not involved in any legal litigation or

arbitration of material importance in which it served as a defendant.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (31 December 2022: nil).
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES AND
ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

As a financial service provider, the Group is not involved in business
that will generate air, water and land pollutions which are regulated
by the applicable laws and regulations in the PRC. No hazardous
waste was produced by the Group in its course of business for
the Reporting Period. The Group complies with the relevant laws
and regulations in environmental protection and impact on the

environment has always been a major focus of the Group.

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of its
businesses and the communities with which it engages. The Group
pursues this business approach by managing the business prudently

and executing management decisions with due care and attention.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the normal
course of business are set out in note 37 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. The related party transactions which
constitute connected transaction have been disclosed in section
headed "CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS" above. The Company has
complied with all the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

DONATION

No charitable and other donations were made by the Group during
the Reporting Period (2022: nil).

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

Details of the Group's relationship with its employees, customers
and suppliers are set out in the "Environmental, Social and

Governance Report” in this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and the laws of the PRC,
the Company is not subject to any pre-emptive rights requiring it to
propose new issues to its existing Shareholders in proportion to their

shareholdings.
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PENSION SCHEME

According to applicable PRC laws and regulations, the Company
has made contributions to the social security fund for its employees
based on a certain percentage of salaries standard. The Company
makes and accrues contributions on a monthly basis to the pension
plans, which are mainly sponsored by the related government
authorities that are responsible for the pension liability to retired
employees. Under such plans, the Company has no other significant
legal or constructive obligations for retirement benefits beyond the

said contributions, which are expensed as incurred.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

From 31 December 2023 to the date of this annual report, no

significant events have occurred.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2023 have been audited by SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited.

Due to the Company not being able to reach a consensus with BDO
on the audit fee for the financial year ended 31 December 2023,
the Board has resolved to cease to renew the engagement of BDO
Limited ("BDO"] as the Company's auditor. With the recommendation
from the Audit Committee, the Board has proposed the appointment
of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited ("SHINEWING") as the new auditor
of the Company following the retirement of BDO.

SHINEWING was appointed as the auditor of the Company on 20 June
2023.

SHINEWING will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of

the Company and, being eligible, offers itself for re-appointment.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST ERIRE

Interests and short positions held by substantial Shareholders FERRE K HM A T RZAR D TR 17 & 868K
and other persons in the shares and underlying shares of the {pHMWEZRAE
Company

As at 31 December 2023, to the best knowledge of the Directors, F2023F 128318 ' IBEZEFTF4 © LA N A Lk
the following persons or corporations (other than the Directors, JAB(ZEZE « BEEH AR B ZRSITHA BERIN R
Supervisors or chief executives of the Company) had the following A TIIID RABRBEIID T #EH T 5B AR A TR
interests or short position in the shares and underlying shares of 1Rz %5 R EAE & HIE 336 16B T AFE N ZELMA
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the — Z#EZREIAE :

Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Number of
shares Number of
interested in shares
the relevant interested in
class of the total share
shares of capital of
the Company the Company "
RARE  Percentage MARE  Percentage
HEERRGT  (approximate) RABESH  (approximate)
Name of Shareholder Class of shares  Nature of interest RERZN Epaps RERRN Bt
RRE®/ /4 gl BHitE i EL (#4) RoEE (##4)
Dayuan Tiandi ¥ Domestic shares  Beneficial owner 80,000,000 (L) 66.67% 80,000,000 (L) 22.26%
N VN:id NER EnBBA
Mr. Zhao Dehua ("Mr. Zhao") Domestic shares  Interest of a controlled 80,000,000 (L) 66.67% 80,000,000 (L 22.26%
corporation
HEREE(HEE])Y AR REEENER
Mr. Gong Liang ("Mr. Gong'] Domestic shares  Interest of a controlled 80,000,000 (L) 66.67% 80,000,000 (L) 22.26%
corporation
Bnrt((EEE]) NER REEEN R
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Number of
shares
interested in

the relevant

Number of
shares

interested in

class of the total share
shares of capital of
the Company the Company "
RAAR Percentage REAR Percentage
REERRGT  (approximate) RALEST  (approximate)
Name of Shareholder Classof shares  Nature of interest BERREN ARl BERRN BAl
BRRE®,/HE el EHtE gt EL (#4) ROEE (#4)
Shenzhen Zhonglian Financial Unlisted foreign ~ Beneficial owner 70,445,200 (L) 47.12% 70,445,200 (L) 19.60%
Holding Investment shares
Development Co., Ltd. FELEMINERR ERBEA
("Shenzhen Zhonglian”) ©
ARB SR EERER LA Domestic shares  Beneficial owner 5,000,000 (L) £17% 5,000,000 (L) 1.39%
(TR B ])o RER ERERA
Hainan Mujing Chengyuan Unlisted foreign ~ Interest of a controlled 70,445,200 (L) 47.12% 70,445,200 (L) 19.60%
Technology Partnership shares corporation
(Limited Partnership) ¥ EmoMER REFENER
("Mujing Chengyuan'] ©
BEASHONBEEBLE Domestic shares  Interest of a controlled 5,000,000 (L) 417% 5,000,000 (L) 1.39%
(BRER)([REHH])S corporation
NER REFENER
Mr. Gong Changjiu Unlisted foreign ~ Interest of a controlled 70,445,200 (L) 47.12% 70,445,200 (L) 19.60%
shares corporation
ERAKEY ¥ EohER REFENER
Domestic shares  Interest of a controlled 5,000,000 (L) £17% 5,000,000 (L) 1.39%

RER

corporation

SEEEMES
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Number of
shares
interested in

the relevant

Number of
shares

interested in

class of the total share
shares of capital of
the Company the Company "
RAAT Percentage REAR Percentage
REERRGT  (approximate) RABESR  (approximate)
Name of Shareholder Classof shares  Nature of interest BERREN Bat BERRN BAL
BRRE®/HE gl EmtE it EL (#4) ROEE (#4)
Mr. Xu Dongsheng ("Mr. Xu"] @ Unlisted foreign  Interest of a controlled 70,445,200 (L) 47.12% 70,445,200 (L) 19.60%
shares corporation
SRALE(FrEEDY I EmANERR R EERER
Domestic shares  Interest of a controlled 5,000,000 (L) b17% 5,000,000 (L) 1.39%
NER corporation
REEENER
Beijing Youke Yu Technology Unlisted foreign  Beneficial owner 46,714,200 (L) 31.25% 46,714,200 (L) 13.00%
Development Co., Ltd. shares
("Youke Yu") ¥
IRERERBRRERAT F EmANERR ERBBA
(MENEw
Beijing Xinmao Licheng Trading Unlisted foreign  Interest of a controlled 46,714,200 (L) 31.25% 46,714,200 (L) 13.00%
Co., Ltd. ["Xinmao Licheng'] shares corporation
IREXIKEERBAR I EmANER R EERER
([&EILR])Y
Mr. Guo Lidong ('Mr. Guo’] Unlisted foreign ~ Interest of a controlled 46,714,200 (L) 31.25% 46,714,200 (L) 13.00%
shares corporation
EvES LAk ) ¥ EmINER R EERER
Mr. Yan Wenge ("Mr. Yan"] Unlisted foreign ~ Interest of a controlled 46,714,200 (L) 31.25% 46,714,200 (L) 13.00%
shares corporation
ENERE(BEE])W FEMINER REEENER
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Number of
shares

interested in

Number of

shares

the relevant interested in
class of the total share
shares of capital of
the Company the Company "
RAAR Percentage REAR Percentage
REERRGT  (approximate) RALEST  (approximate)
Name of Shareholder Classof shares  Nature of interest BERREN BAk BERRN BAL
BRRE®,/HE el EHtE gt EL (#4) ROEE (#4)
Beijing Hengsheng Rongcheng Unlisted foreign ~ Beneficial owner 32,340,600 (L) 21.63% 32,340,600 (L) 9.00%
Trading Co., Ltd. ¥ shares EaEEA
TRERRATERRARE FEmINER
Ms. Wu Yue © Unlisted foreign ~ Interest of a controlled 32,340,600 (L) 21.63% 32,340,600 (L) 9.00%
shares corporation
Azt FEMINER REEENER
KKC Capital Limited H shares Investment manager 9,408,000 (L) 10.47% 9,408,000 (L) 2.62%
HR RELR
KKC Capital SPC - H shares Beneficial owner 9,408,000 (L) 10.47% 9,408,000 (L) 2.62%
KKC Capital High Growth Fund Hix ERBEBA
Segregated Portfolio
A Plus Capital Management Limited ~ H shares Investment manager 9,318,000 (L) 10.37% 9,318,000 (L) 2.59%
R KRB
Tiger Capital Fund SPC - H shares Beneficial owner 9,318,000 (L) 10.37% 9,318,000 (L) 2.59%
Tiger Global SP HR ERBEBA
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Notes:

(1

(2]

(3

(4]

(5)

The letter "L " denotes the person’s long position in the shares. As
at 31 December 2023, the Company issued a total of 359,340,000
shares, including 120,000,000 domestic shares, 89,840,000 H
shares and 149,500,000 unlisted foreign shares.

Dayuan Tiandi is owned as to 55% by Mr. Zhao and 45% by Mr.
Gong. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Zhao and Mr. Gong are deemed to
be interested in the shares held by Dayuan Tiandi.

Shenzhen ZhongLian is owned as to 90% by Mujing Chengyuan and
10% by Mr. Gong Changjiu. Mujing Chengyuan is in turn owned as
to 51% by Mr. Gong Changjiu and 49% by Mr. Xu. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Gong Changjiu and Mr. Xu are deemed to be interested in
the shares held by Shenzhen ZhongLian.

Youke Yu is owned as to 20% by Mr. Guo and 80% by Xinmao
Licheng. Xinmao Licheng is in turn owned as to 50% by Mr. Guo and
50% by Mr. Yan. By virtue of the SFO, Xinmao Licheng, Mr. Guo and
Mr. Yan are deemed to be interested in the shares held by Youke
Yu.

Beijing Hengsheng Rongcheng Trading Co., Ltd. is wholly owned
by Ms. Wu Yue. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Wu Yue is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Beijing Hengsheng Rongcheng
Trading Co., Ltd..

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Directors were

not aware of any other person or corporation which had any interest

or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company

as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.

Wit -

(1)

(2)

(3]

(4]

(5]
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Interests and short positions held by Directors, Supervisors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations

As at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors, Supervisors or
chief executive of the Company had an interest or short position in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporation as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
required standard of dealings by directors of listed issuers as
referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules (which shall be
deemed to apply to the Supervisors to the same extent as it applies to

the Directors).

By Order of the Board
FY Financial (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
Li Peng

Chairman

Shenzhen, the PRC, 27 March 2024
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
EEeqE

In 2023, the Supervisory Committee executed its supervising function
earnestly, safeguarded the rights and interests of the Shareholders
and the Company and carried out its work in a diligent and proactive
manner pursuant to the provisions of the Company Law of the PRC,
the Articles of Association, the rules of procedures of the Supervisory
Committee and the GEM Listing Rules

The Supervisory Committee comprises three members, namely Mr.
Zhu Xiaodong. Mr. Liu Bing and Mr. Sun Luran. The chairman of the

Supervisory Committee is Mr. Zhu Xiaodong.

I.  MEETINGS OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

During the Reporting Period, the Supervisory Committee held
four meetings in total. Such meetings were held in compliance
with the requirements of relevant regulations and the Articles
of Association and with proper service of notice and presence
of quorum. Major matters considered and reviewed by the

Supervisory Committee include:

o Review of the annual report of 2022, the first quarterly
report, the interim report and the third quarterly report
for 2023.

J Review of the financial budget plan for 2022, the
resolution on profit and dividend distribution plan for
2022 and the financial budget proposal for 2023.

o Considering and approving the work report of the

Supervisory Committee for 2022.

During the Reporting Period, members of the Supervisory
Committee attended and observed all general meetings and
Board meetings in accordance with laws and monitored
the matters considered at the Board meetings and general
meetings and the compliance with laws and regulations of
procedures. During the Reporting Period, there was no incident
where the Supervisors made representations to the Directors

or sued the Directors on behalf of the Company.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

EHRQ WS

Il. INDEPENDENT OPINIONS OF THE SUPERVISORY
COMMITTEE ON RELEVANT MATTERS

1.

Financial report

The 2023 financial report of the Company prepared under
the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards has been
audited by SHINEWING and SHINEWING has issued an
unqualified audit report. The financial report fairly and
truly reflects the Company’s financial position as at 31
December 2023 and the financial performance and cash
flow in 2023.

Connected Transactions

The Supervisory Committee reviewed the connected
transactions between the Company and its connected
persons during the Reporting Period and considered
that the related party transactions were in compliance
with relevant requirements of the Stock Exchange and
applicable laws and the considerations for the connected
transactions were reasonable, open and fair and no
matters that were detrimental to the interests of the

Company or its Shareholders as a whole were identified.
Internal control

During the Reporting Period, the Company continued
to strengthen and improve the construction of its
internal control system. The comprehensiveness and
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control were
continuously improved. The Supervisory Committee
was not aware of any material defect in the Company's

internal control system or its implementation.

Implementation of the resolutions of general
meetings

The Supervisory Committee had no objection to all
such reports and resolutions submitted by the Board
to general meetings for consideration and approval
in 2023. The Supervisory Committee supervised the
implementation of the resolutions of the general
meetings of the Shareholders and considered that the
Board had prudently implemented the resolutions of

general meetings.

. EEeYHAEEENEIER

1.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
EHQWE

5. Operations in Compliance with Laws and 5. MREEHRKE
Regulations

During the Reporting Period, the operations of the RIBERA » RRABELERRAIE -
Company were normal and reasonable and were in WESFERER  ER - RAIRATE
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, rules and BoEEelERIREENARNT SR
the Articles of Association. The Supervisory Committee BIEA BNERREFEENAEER
was not aware of non-compliance with laws, regulations ANRERIBEARN A MR EE N
or the Articles of Association nor of behaviors that were K115 °

detrimental to the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole committed by the Directors and

the senior management of the Company in discharging

their duties.
FY Financial (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. ERMEHRE R RBBRAAE
Supervisory Committee EEe
27 March 2024 202453 A27H
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PREPARATION BASIS AND SCOPE

In accordance with the disclosures requirements under the “comply
or explain” provisions as to the Appendix C2 “Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide” (the "ESG Guide”] of the GEM
Listing Rules, this environmental, social and governance report
(the "ESG Report”) covers the overall performance of the Group in
environmental, social and governance (the "ESG") aspects during the
period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 (the “Reporting
Period”). The ESG Guide index is set out in the Appendix of this
ESG Report, which is presented in accordance with the “comply or
explain” provisions of the GEM Listing Rules during the Reporting
Period.

The Group highly values the importance of making appropriate
disclosure of corporate information to all the stakeholders and
believes that high level of transparency is the key to building
confidence with the stakeholders. Therefore, in this ESG Report, it
highlighted the sustainable achievements in the following areas to
give the stakeholders a better understanding of what the Group has

done to protect the environment and promote social harmony:

mREERHE

TIRE - g RERME([BRE  HERERRK
& DKBGEM EMRBIMERC2CGRIE - HERER
HEESI(BIR - HERERES DO TEFH
R A EBEETER - WE T ALER2023
F1RA1HE2023%12 8318 LM (T3REHE 1)
EIRE - g REG(RIR HERERDATEN
BRERR RN - g RERIESIARRSIEHNA
RIE - B REBWRSHMEE - RIREHN - AR
AIE 8 SFGEM TR B [ 8P RUERRE 160 -

AEEGEERZERBE QRS BEME M
THEBEEN - YRAREAERENGEEIEY
EERRESE - FIt - AEEEARE - @ REAR
WEFEIL T AT SRBAIHEREKIL - &
LiEReE Mt BB B AP T SRR B BIREIRE
FREL MR EE -

ESG Aspects BRI HEBREREE  Issues ER
Environmental R - Emissions - B
= Use of resources - BRER
- Theenvironmentand natural resources -  HRFEREXARER
- Climate change - RIRE
Employment and labour practices  fEfE NS TH R - Employment - ER
- Health and safety = (RS
- Development and training - BREE
= Labour standards - & TR
Operating practices HIEE - Supply chain management - fhEEER
- Product responsibility - EmAf
- Anti-corruption - -Vt
Community HERERE - Community investment - HERE

This ESG Report was approved by the Board on 27 March 2024.

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. B & ECEI) XKD ERA

AIRF - LGB AREAESTSRN2024F3 27
HHbk -

4



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE - g MERHRE

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
Board’s oversight of ESG issues

The Board is committed to the long-term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which the Group operates and
continually enhances investment value to stakeholders through
proper and effective internal control systems and ESG risk
management measures throughout its operations. The Board
considers ESG-related risks and opportunities as part of the Group’s
overall strategic formulation, and the significant ESG impact caused
by daily operations and businesses. The Board maintains oversight
of and approves the identification and assessment of ESG issues and
confirms that to the best of its knowledge, this ESG Report addresses
material topics related to the operations of the Group and fairly

presents its ESG performance and impacts.

The Board has appointed the Group’s management to supervise the
ESG-related issues and work of the Group. The Group’s management
Is responsible for monitoring and reviewing the compliance with
local laws and regulations with regards to ESG-related issues. The
management is also responsible for establishment of sustainability
strategies, policies and measures to implement sustainability
initiatives, provide sustainability reporting and prepare the ESG

Report.

Board’s ESG management approach and strategy for
material ESG-related issues

In order to better understand the opinions and expectations of
different stakeholders on the ESG issues, materiality assessment
is conducted annually. The Group ensures various platforms and
channels of communication are used to reach, listen and respond to
its key stakeholders. Through communication with the stakeholders,
the Group is able to understand their expectations and concerns.
The feedbacks obtained allow the Group to make more informed
decisions, and to better assess and manage the impacts of the

business decisions.

The Group has evaluated the materiality for each of the ESG aspects
through the following steps: (i) identification of ESG issues by the
Group; (i) key ESG areas prioritisation with stakeholder engagement;
and (iii) validation and determining material ESG issues based on the

results of communication with the stakeholders.
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Engaging these steps can enhance the understanding of the degree
of importance of the Group's stakeholders to each material ESG
issue, and can enable the Group to plan the sustainable development
direction more comprehensively in the future.

Board reviews progress made against ESG-related goals
and targets

The progress of implementation and the performance of the
goals and targets should be closely reviewed from time to time.
Modification may be needed if the progress falls short of expectation
or change of business operations. Effective communication about
the goals and targets with key stakeholders such as employees,
customers and suppliers are essential. Setting strategic goals

enable the Group to develop a realistic roadmap and focus on results

of achieving the visions.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES
The ESG Report is based on the following four reporting principles

Materiality: Stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment
were conducted to identify material ESG issues, and to ensure that
these issues are addressed in the report.

Quantitative: Data presented in this ESG Report have been collected
prudently. Please refer to the environmental and social performance
data for standards and methodologies used for calculation of key
performance indicators.

Balance: Both positive and negative sides of the performance have
been presented in a transparent manner.

Consistency: Unless otherwise stated, the disclosures, data
collection and calculation methods have remained consistent
throughout the years to facilitate comparability over time.

REPORTING BOUNDARIES

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of finance leasing,
factoring, advisory services and customer referral services and the
supply of medical equipment in the PRC. The Group is also involved
in other areas, such as 5G base station business and energy storage
business. The Group’s major operations are located in Shenzhen;
Beijing and Nanjin. Therefore, the disclosures in this ESG Report
focus on the policies and performance of offices located in Shenzhen;
Beijing and Nanjin during the Reporting Period in relation to the four
environmental aspects and eight social aspects.
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INFORMATION AND FEEDBACK

For details about the financial performance and corporate
governance of the Group during the Reporting Period, please visit the

website of the Company at www.fyleasing.com and this ESG Report.

The Group highly values your opinions. Should you have any
suggestion or feedback regarding the ESG Report and the
performance of the Group on sustainability, please contact the Group

by e-mail at jgzx@fyleasing.com.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Stakeholder engagement plays a core role in the sustainability of the
Group. The Group fully appreciates the needs to build both online and
offline communication channels and to provide stakeholders with
timely reports on strategic planning and performance of the Group
in order to establish a continuing communication mechanism with
the stakeholders. In addition, the Group consults the stakeholders
on their recommendations and propositions to ensure its business

practices which can meet the expectations of the stakeholders.

The stakeholders include the governments and regulatory bodies,
investors, media, suppliers, customers, employees and the
community. The Group discusses with the stakeholders through
various channels for their expectations and relevant feedback of the

Group as below:

BERRRE

BHASERREPRN M BRERDEE R
15 FBAIEARR ML www. fyleasing.com R ZANIR

B g REemE -

AEEGEERETHER - MEATHIRE &
KERBERAEBENAIFERRTEANKRAE
2R E
REE -

78 | # = gzx@fyleasing.com B 4%

Nz=EE S 28R

NEARET 2 BEARKE WA FHEERPEEZL
1ER - AEBRAFTEZRUK L RRTERRE -
DA % 358 B 1) 1) 2 41 B 7 12 R S 52 1B M SRS 381 B
RERE - LRSI ERBES - 1t
S NEBE R AR T A RS MR - AR
HEBHNERTANTANSMERE 22

MBS SRR REEWE - 8% - F88
HER BF - BERMLE - AEESEFSHERES
AASERENRESHASENHEMNBRR
82 P ¢

Stakeholders Expectations and requirements Communication and feedback
MEEES HERER BB O e
The Stock - Compliance with the GEM Listing Rules = Meetings, training, seminars and
Exchange - ETGEMLETMARAI programmes
B 32 FfT - B B HEEeMEsE
- Publishing of announcements in a timely - Website updates and announcements
and accurate manner = HENAE YN
- REEETEAE
Governments = Compliance with laws and regulations = Interactions and visits, government
E¢;5] = BRRER inspections and compliance operation

- Prevention of tax evasion
- BN

= BERRE - BNREMEG R EE
- Tax returns and other information

- EBBRMEMER
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Stakeholders Expectations and requirements Communication and feedback
NEEES HERER BEHEE e
Investors = Corporate governance = Optimising risk management and internal
REE - EES control
- B ERBREIRMAEES
= Business strategies = Organisation and participation of
- EREE conferences, visits and interviews and
general meetings
- HAERZ2EWSE - SRIBRAE
- Performance and investment returns - Provision of financial reports or business
= RIBAILE [O3R updates for investors, press and analysts
- RREE  HERASTEMEHMGRESE
BENER
Media - Corporate governance - Posting of newsletters on the company
U - 1EER website
- ERRALL EEMmEE
- Environmental protection - Adopting green office practices
- RERE - RARERDER
- Human rights - Providing equal employment opportunities
- A - RHETEEKS
Suppliers - Payment schedule - Fulfilment of payment obligation
HERE - [IREER - BONEED
- Supply stability - Site investigation
- HERE - BgEHEs
= Integrity cooperation = Establishing a responsible supply chain
- HIEAE - BEyaEfiEs
Customers = Product/service quality = Monitoring customers’ satisfaction through
B = Em/ REmE enquiry and survey
- BEBRANABEAREFREE
= Fair and reasonable pricing = Price analysis and pricing strategy
- RF/EEE - EROWMEBRE
= Value of service - Providing after-sale services
- RBEE - RHERERS
Employees = Rights and benefits and employee salaries - Competitive salary and employee benefits
(= - Rz AR - EABFIOHMMEEEN

= Training and development
- EYIEEE

= Working hours and working environment

- ILFSEMIERE
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Stakeholders Expectations and requirements Communication and feedback
MHAERES HERER B E
- Protection for the labour force and work - Issuance of staff manual and internal
safety memorandum on health and safety
- BIRENIEZZR - BMEIFMNEBRREEZZ2NHAIES
Community - Environmental protection - Energy conservation practices
ol - RERE - HiReEE
- Employment opportunities = Providing equal opportunities for all
- ME#Me employees
- RIBEERH#TEHE
- Community development and social - Organisation of community activities welfare
- HRBERNHLESEF and employees volunteering activities,
sponsorship and donations
- FERMREY  EETHEERY  EPE
B
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT EEMI

The Group conducted a comprehensive materiality assessment on a
number of ESG issues in order to identify which areas have the most
significant operating, environmental and social impacts towards the

Group’s business and are of the utmost concerned by stakeholders.

With reference to the scopes as required under the ESG Reporting
Guide and taking into consideration of the corporate business
characteristics, the Group has identified and confirmed 22 issues,
which cover environmental, training and development, occupational
health and safety, employee welfare, supply chain management,
corporate governance, customer privacy, anti-corruption and

community investments.

AEBEDHEERE e MERREETEHE
ZUERHE - ABPIHAREEB 2EE - BRIERA

EREMsREENMNEEEIRBEEIZTH -
R2ERE - HEREAREIESIMRECEHE
RBEBEREBRR - AKEC BRI LR 22(E

R HERR - HIREBR BERREZS -
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Materiality matrix of ESG issues
RE -HERERESHEZEEMER

2]
ch,g PRI(?RITY 22 .

I

IGHEST

gl
mF
o

©

HRRAEREL 2 B2 HERE

IMPORTANCE / RELEVANCE TO STAKEHOLDERS ﬂ}

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 0 10

IMPORTANCE / RELEVANCE TO BUSINESS i
HEKCEEN HERE
Environmental Social Operating practices
BI% e EEEH
1. Greenhouse gas emissions 9. Local community engagement 17. Economic value generated
1R EREBHN 9. ANHbt R SRR 7. RBBENESE
2. Energy consumption 10. Community investment 18. Corporate governance
2. BEIRHFE 10. HRIKE 18. BXER
3. Water consumption 11. Occupational health and safety 19. Anti-corruption
3. Ak M BERERL S 19. R&)5
4. Air emission 12. Labour standards in supply chain 20. Supply chain management
b BERBEIR 12. fLREgERE TAR| 20 fpEsEE R
5. Waste generation 13. Training and development 21. Customer satisfaction
5. BEEMEL 13. 553 EE 3SR 2. BFMER
6. Compliance with laws and regulations 14. Employee welfare 22. Customer privacy
relating to environmental protection 14 EB&F 22. EF LB
6. B HMRRERER 15. Inclusion and equal opportunities
7. Impact of climate change 15. BRMFEHE
7. BRI LR E 16. Talent attraction and retention
8. Use of chemicals 16. WA B AT

8. {2 m{EM
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ENVIRONMENTAL

The operation of the Group has limited impact on the environment.
The Group’s business area is not the main causes of environmental
pollution. Moreover, the business of the Group does not involve
industrial activities and thus the total amount of emission, resources

used and waste produced is low.

However, the Group understands that it is the responsibility of all
corporations to ensure that emission of pollutants and consumption
of resources are minimized and carbon footprints are produced. For
such purpose, the Group has identified the following goals to reduce

consumption of resources:
Goals

- Reducing air emissions and greenhouse gases ("GHG")

emissions;
= Reducing consumption of resources; and

= Reducing production of waste.

EMISSIONS

During the Reporting Period, air emissions include nitrogen oxides
("NOx"), sulphur oxides ("SOx") and particulate matter ("PM"] which

were generated through the use of the Group's vehicle.

There were mainly three types of GHG emissions of the Group during
the Reporting Period, including but not limited to direct emission
from a vehicle, indirect emission from electricity consumed in offices
and indirect emissions from aircrafts when the employees went for

business trips.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had two vehicles which
travelled 33,596 km (2022: 21,405 km), mainly for short distance
business trip. The Group encourages all employees taking public
transport to customers’ companies and using the vehicle only in case
of emergency. Meanwhile, the vehicle was monitored and inspected
by the system on a regular basis to keep them in the best conditions
in order to increase fuel consumption efficiency and ensure road

safety.

R
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IERIFRES - FULHR - BEIRERAERY
ELTHENBETEE -

A - ARERET fR B RERS R RV PRI E TR AV
MEERELBRIBRELERMEELENEME - B
It AEEHIE T A TRDEREEN BT

BiE

- REESFEREREERE(RERE|EE
WE

- 5)@&9\%7\/ \5%%% ; &
- BOERMEXL-

2954

RBEEA - BERENBREAEEERFERES
MaSE([Nox]) « —&{bwi([Sox]) K EER 1
(TPM]) °

AEBERREHNNRERBHINTIZA=RE ' &
ERUBTRR)EMNEZREN - MAERENEE
BERUNR B SR AL R DB RO R RN -

RIRERAN - AEBMMBHRHAITTR AR A33,59
NE(20226F : 214052 8) - TERERNERAH -
REBEEEFMEREREIGEFARREFERAARR
BTA RBEEZREBRIEALEEER - [
W BIHA T RAETHERRE - FEHERR
RERRE - RERSFEABERBREKLS -

2023 ANNUAL REPORT EE 4

79



80

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R g MERRE

The employees took aircrafts for business trips for 154 times (2022:
164 times) and the total carbon dioxide equivalent generated from air
travel amounted to 19,503.49 kg (2022: 18,615.58 kg). The purposes
of business trip are business development, risk auditing and asset
management, etc. The Group has adopted a policy of emission
reduction including, (i) the employees only took aircrafts for business
trips when necessary; and [ii) the Group arranges phone or video
conference instead of face-to-face meetings to reduce emissions
from transportation.

For electricity consuming in offices, the Group encourages its
employees to set the air conditioners at the most comfortable
temperature and switch air conditioners and lights off when they
are not necessary so as to reduce emission of greenhouse gases.
The Group has also put notices at eye-catching areas in the offices
to remind its employees about energy saving in the ordinary course
of business. The Group has launched the target of reducing Air
emissions and GHG emission density by 5% in five years based on
2021.

Air emissions from the use of motor vehicles Note ")

REFRYREABFTE - —HB154K(2022F -
164%)  MERBEAN —SLREELTA
19,503.49F 53 (20224F :18,615.58F 5 ) - A% EH
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Environmental Indicators Unit 2023 2022
RERER Efy 2023F 20225
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) emissions Kg 25.89 19.63
REALDINOX) BER T
Sulphur oxides (SO,) emissions Kg 0.08 0.05
ZE(EWR(SOX BERR Y T
Particulate matter (PM] emissions Kg 2.64 1.98
FERLH PM)BERR T

GHG emissions from operation

EREEELTNAEREIN

Environmental Indicators Unit 2023 2022
BRIRER By 20234 20224
Direct emissions (Scope 1) Kg COe 20,753 15,899
BEHER(EE) Fr-—atikgE
Indirect emissions (Scope 2] Note2 Kg CO%e 74,632 33,622
R HE v (B [E12) i) Fr-altirgEE
Other indirect emissions (Scope 3) Kg COze 20,377 21,077
H Bk (& E3) Fr_atigE
Total GHG emissions Kg COse 115,762 70,598
mERBHINAE Fr-_StHES
GHG emissions intensity Kg COe per employee 1,346 1,471

RERBHMEE

Ee, S4EE
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GHG emissions can be classified into three scopes:

Scope 1:

Scope 2:

Scope 3:

Note 1:

Note 2:

Direct GHG emissions from operations that are owned
or controlled by the Group including fuel consumption of

motor vehicle(s) controlled by the Group.

Indirect GHG emissions resulting from electricity

purchased from power suppliers.

Other indirect GHG emissions resulting from paper waste
disposed at landfills, water consumed and employees’

business trips by aircraft of the Group.

The emission factors used to calculate the NOx, SO, and
PM are sourced from: (i] the Hong Kong Environmental
Protection Department’s ("EPD") EMFAC-HK Vehicle
Emission Calculation model; and (ii) the United States
Environmental Protection Agency’'s Vehicle Emission
Modeling Software - MOBILE.1. The assumption of 80%
relative humidity, a temperature of 25 degrees Celsius,
an average speed of 30kmh, and include running exhaust

emissions only.

The national emission factors for Shenzhen, Beijing and
Tianjin are sourced from The Ministry of Ecology and
Environmental of PRC (2019).
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Production of waste

Solid waste of the Group is mainly produced in the daily operation
of the offices, including daily paper consumption, office paper waste
and food waste made by employees. The paper consumption in this
year was 351 kg in total (2022: 505 kg). All domestic waste is collected
and disposed by the property management office of the office
building on a regular basis. No hazardous wastes are generated in

the operations of the offices.

The Group is committed to reducing waste production. The Group
encourages the employees to recycle stationery and reduce
waste with an aim to prevent waste production at the initial stage.
Moreover, the Group has adopted a digital operation method to
centralize all documents and regularly educates its employees
regarding environmental protection. For example, the employees
are required to print double-sided and reuse paper printed single-
sided in order to save and reduce the use of paper and other natural
resources. Permission is also required for printing in the offices
for statistical and adjustment purposes on the use of paper, so that

resource utilization can be enhanced.

The Group has established appropriate measures for disposal
of computers and related products such as printers and toner
cartridges. Unused digital products are transferred or reused while
obsolete accessories and used toner cartridges are collected by third

party companies for recycling.

In case it is necessary to dispose of an item, the Group encourages its
employees to collect and classify the waste before disposing so as to

reduce the negative impact on the environment.

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. B & ECEI) XKD ERA

BENEE

AEBMELANERBERY I ZRENAENAT
BIF BREATAE MAXHEYREIRmE
Y& - RERNARREFELER351 T (2022%F :
505T52) ° FTAE/ARIRIG MM AIBFABHYEE
BRERGWERE IR ELEVERELR
EREEY) -

AEBBOIRBLERMES - ARBEmEEERE
WX ERRANRDIRE - {RBARIGR D BEER
BEL - b4 AEBERAEF(CHEERAE
PEEXMER - YA FHAREESEERRAS
AR (R B 5 ENF E 8 5 A S 48 ENAY AR -
VABBH) KR A FRAR SR B RIREIR © =50 - I
NRENGREVIEER - HRAEBERETHR KA
B REERMAE-

AEEHERERSER SR - WFTE - 55
2% BUEENRIERER ASEeEENER
ERERBNE T - E2(CHECHHE ArYAR
MEAIRAFE= AR MK - BEITREREE

MUEEENS - AEEEEEWEEEN R
AAERARE  WREHEENATYE -

4



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE - g MERHRE

Waste produced from operation

RETEERERY

Environmental Indicators Unit 2023 2022
REER Efy 2023F 20225
Hazardous waste produced Mo Kg N/A N/A
P EE = 008 ERE S A (i) T TER e A
Hazardous waste produced intensity Kg per employee N/A N/A
FIE4ANBEREENEE Tr/8%EE TERA NiE A
Non-hazardous waste produced Nete? Kg N/A N/A
PR E A ) R 2 R SR ) (i) T TER A
Non-hazardous waste produced intensity Kg per employee N/A N/A
FIE4A N EEEENEE FTr/8%EE TER NiE A

Note 1:  No hazardous waste is produced by the Group. Therefore, ~ BfizE1:  ANEBEWEELGEZREEY - Atk A

such disclosure is not applicable to the Group. AR EL NERRAREE o
Note 2:  Non-hazardous waste produced by the Group is minimal.  FffzE2 :  AREBEELNEZEZYIRD - Fit -

Therefore, no relevant figure is quantified.

The targets of the Group are to maintain zero generation of
hazardous waste and minimal generation of non-hazardous waste in

the next five years.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was in compliance with
the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC the Law of the PRC
on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution and other
applicable rules and regulations related to environmental protection
and did not identify any violations that were related to environmental
protection and other applicable laws and regulations that has
significant impact relating to air and greenhouse gases emissions,
discharges into water and land, generation of hazardous and non-

hazardous waste of the Group.

In addition, no significant fines or non-monetary sanctions for non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations had been reported

during the Reporting Period.
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USE OF RESOURCES

The Group has always been promoting sustainability by assuming
the social responsibility of environmental protection in the course
of business and, on the premise of minimizing the impact on the
environment, creating unlimited possibilities with limited resources.
In this regard, the Group attaches great importance to employees’
environmental awareness, and thus has put forth a number of
initiatives with the goal of “green office”, educating employees about
how to fully utilize the resources and save energy. The Group aims
at maximizing the efficiency of our resources in commercial aspect
while eliminating waste and contributing to the society in social

aspect.

The Group also embraces its responsibility in environmental
protection throughout the course of office administration and daily
operation. Apart from adhering to the principle of recycling and
reducing use, the Group is committed to creating green offices to
minimize the impact on the environment. In light of the nature of the
business of the Group, the consumption of energy, electricity, water
and other natural resources in the offices are limited. Electricity
consumed by the Group for the Reporting Period is mainly due to

daily consumption in the offices.
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Below are measures taken by the Group in saving energy:

o Adopting double-sided printing and promoting use of recycled

paper;

o Switching off unused lights and electric appliances to reduce

energy consumption;

° Keeping the room temperature at a comfortable level and

switching off the air conditioners when not necessary;

o Switching off the air conditioners and lights after office hour

and when they are not in use;

° Requiring employees to turn their computers and other devices
to the sleep mode or switch them off when leaving the office

(including when visiting clients and having lunch); and

° Conducting regular maintenance for office equipment (such
as air conditioners, computers, lights, refrigerators and paper

shredders] to ensure normal operation.
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Signs for reminding employees to save energy
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As per the business nature of the Group, water consumption is very
limited, mainly daily water consumption by the employees in offices
during business hours. The domestic sewage of the Group does
not include hazardous wastewater and is directly discharged to the
municipal sewer pipeline. In order to reduce wastewater, employees

of the Group are encouraged to save water.

The Group has launched the target of reducing energy consumption

and water consumption density by 5% in five years based on 2021.
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Use of resources from operation RERAEIR
Environmental Indicators Unit 2023 2022
RERER Efy 2023F 20225
Energy Consumption
#ERe
Units of purchased electricity consumed Nete ) kWh 87,313 43,928
BEEHREEMG M) TR
Units of purchased petrol consumed Nete? kWh 56,869 37,168
BE)UHAEE LMW TR
Total energy consumption kWh 144,182 81,096
RERHFEEE TRk
Total energy consumption intensity kWh per employee 1,676 1,690
RERHREATE FTRE BE8T
Water Consumption MNete )
J::p G
Water consumption M3 533 137
FA7K SITK
Water consumption intensity M2 per employee 6 g
RKEE MR/ BRET
Packaging Material Consumption Mot 3
BEMBEREM
Packaging material used for finished products Kg N/A N/A
SURK PR BEH R TR TERA TEA
Packaging material used intensity Kg per piece N/A N/A
FTREEMEEE T/ 8t TiE A TiEA
Note 1: The figures in 2023 covered the electricity consumption  Bffz¥1 : 2023 FHEEREI R FHIEER
from offices in Beijing, Shenzhen and Nanjin. The figures M N TEET o 20224 () 85 R £t
in 2022 covered the electricity consumption from offices 2 E R R AZEE o
in Beijing, Shenzhen and Nanjin.
Note 2: The conversion factor used to convert data in other units  Fffz¥2 : U8 H b B 7 B B e iR A T RSP AR EY
to kWh is sourced from the Energy Statistics Manual R ER A B AR B M RL R &
issued by the International Energy Agency. EFA o
Note 3:  As the Group is principally engaged in provision of finance  Ff#3F3 : HRAANEBR T EFPRNYEREER

lease services, factoring and advisory services, customer
referral services and the supply of medical equipment in
the PRC, no packaging material was consumed during

the Reporting Period.
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THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group aims to conserve natural resources and is concerned with
the environmental impact of its activities. The Group encourages
all employees to participate in different kinds of recycling activities
and minimize the use of natural resources. During the Reporting
Period, there is no significant impact on the environment and natural

resources from the operations of the Group.

CLIMATE CHANGE

Awareness over climate change continues to grow and is one of the
most discussed topics among companies. The Group is no exception,
having increasing concerns over the potential impact from climate
change on the Group’s business and operation. The Group regularly
reviews global and local government policies, regulatory updates and
market trends to identify potential climate-related risks which may

have impact on the Group’s business operation.

In accordance to the reporting framework developed by the Task
Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures, there are two major
categories of climate-related risks, physical and transition risks. The
Group will immediately develop a response plan such as changing
the business strategy and modifying the development plan in order to

reduce the negative impacts of such climate-related risks.

The Group will continuously incorporate sustainable practices in its
business operations and prepare and maintain sufficient resources
for managing identified climate-related risks and studying the

potential remediation measures.

During the Reporting Period, there is no climate-related risk,
including physical and transitional risks, which have significant

impact to the Group.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group regards its employees as the cornerstone of its
development, and an integral part to its sustainable development.
Therefore, the Group attaches high importance to the training and
welfare of its employees, and is committed to providing a working
environment of job satisfaction for its employees. The Group puts
much efforts to ensure the statutory rights of its employees be
protected and its strict compliance with a series of labour law of
the PRC, including the PRC Labour Contract Law, the PRC Labour
Law, and the Social Insurance Law of the PRC. The Group provides
competitive remuneration and good promotion opportunities to
facilitate career development of its employees. The Group has a goal

to attract, train, motivate and retain suitable talents.
Employment

The human resources policies of the Group are developed in
accordance with the applicable labour laws and regulations of the
PRC, including the Labour Law of the PRC, the Labour Contract
Law of the PRC and the Social Insurance Law of the PRC, to protect
its employees’ interests. The asset management department of
the Group has also engaged qualified lawyers in the PRC to closely
monitor updates of the laws and relevant regulatory requirements to

ensure its compliance with relevant regulations.

The Group has formulated its staff manual and management system
of human resources according to relevant labour regulations,
covering human resources policies and working conditions, such
as recruitment and promotion procedures, trainings, performance
appraisals, remuneration and benefits, working hours, vacations and

other leaves (marriage leave, compassionate leave, maternity leave).
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Employee structure

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 86 employees (2022:
48 employees) and all of them are full-time employees located in

the PRC. The distribution of employees by different categories is as

EEEE

M2023F 128318 » REBEHEE86E (20214 : 48
H)EE - HFEVARTRENEZEEES - TR
BIEIDHEE DMINT :

follows:
By gender By age
gk dalE ) RFEERED
7%
33%
28%
67 %
65%
M Male Female B Under 30 years old 30-50 years old Over 50 years old
S g3 305% AT 30E505% 507% A £
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During the Reporting Period, the employee turnover rate of the Group ~ R¥REHAM - AEE R B Rkt RIRFEFI 2| DM

by categories is as follows: T

Employee turnover rate Note? 2023 2022
18 837 2% b 2 (i) 2023F 20224

By gender

BRSNS

Male 12% 19%
B

Female 32% 21%
gk

By age group

REWRARE D

Under 30 years old 18% 29%
30BRIA T

30-50 years old 20% 20%
30E505%

Over 50 years old 20% -
50B%A £

By geographical region

Ry @& 5

Mainland China 19% 20%
B A e

Hong Kong - =
o

Note 1: The employee turnover rate is calculated based on the {31 : [EERELLL R IRENRE RS AR B

number of employees who left employment in each category BLE B M) A BB LAZZ BRI B B L1 A SR
during the Reporting Period divided by the average number B -

of employees in that category.
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To Attract and Retain Talents

The Group upholds the operational philosophy of optimally using
all available talents and resources and sticks to the employment
principle based on the abilities and morality of an employee. Main
criteria for employment includes morality, knowledge, abilities and
track record of employees so as to make best use of and retain

talents.

The Group provides employees with fair and equitable remuneration
and benefits based on employees’ personal track record,
experience and market benchmark. The Group has formulated a
set of performance appraisal mechanism, in which appropriate
remuneration adjustment is made annually based on job
performance of an employee to reduce turnover rate. To effectively
evaluate and optimise the career life for its employees, the Group
also assists employees to analyse their personal career development
direction according to their own conditions and guide them to
complete the employees’ career development planning form to

establish goals and strategies of their career life.
Benefits and Vacation

To enhance the sense of belonging of employees, foster good
working morale and strengthen cohesion within the Group, the Group
provides various benefits to employees, including contribution to five
types of insurance and one pension fund, and subsidies on lunch,

birthday, transportation and communication and others.

In addition to formulation of reasonable working and rest time
according to local employment laws and system, provision of
statutory holidays and paid annual leave, the Group also provides
additional holidays such as marriage leave, maternity leave and

bereavement leave.

Furthermore, the Group organises a series of employee activities
annually, helping employees to integrate into the corporate culture of
the Group. Meanwhile, relevant training programs are also designed
at the request of various departments so as to enhance employees’

job skills and promote their job satisfaction.
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Inclusion

The Group is determined to creating a fair and equitable working
environment where all employees will be treated equally and no
discrimination or harassment in workplace will be tolerated. No
differential remuneration package is provided based on employees’
gender, age, marriage status, race, religious belief or other
factors irrelevant to the job. If an employee thinks he/she is being
treated unfairly, he/she can report and reflect to human resources
department. Various departments will also implement internal
control. The Group will issue a written warning to any employee in
violation of the regulations of the Group if any unfair case is found or
verified. Such employee will be subject to termination of employment

if the violation is serious.

During the Reporting Period, the Group strictly complied with
labour laws of the PRC and relevant regulations, and had not been
involved in any event of breach of laws and regulations relating to
employment relationship, compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare which

had a significant impact on the Group.

No non-compliance with law that resulted in significant fines or

sanctions had been reported during the Reporting Period.
Health and Safety

Due to the nature of the business of the Group, the employees mainly
work in the office and their possibilities of sustaining work injuries
are limited. No serious work injury incident occurred in the Group
during the Reporting Period. As for laws and regulations of the PRC
in relation to the occupational health standards and safe production,
the Group did not record any major non-compliance during the
reporting year. The Group maintains work-related injury insurance
for all employees in accordance with the Social Insurance Law of the

PRC as well as other laws and regulations of the PRC.
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In addition, to foster and maintain a good, comfortable and healthy  F#h » BEEMRIFTR LT ~ AFEMERENIIER
working environment, the Group has implemented a series of 3% ' KEBEHE T — RFIBUK :

policies:

. to maintain obstruction-free emergency access in workplace; . RETIIESHMEZ2E OB
e to provide a workplace with adequate illumination and e REAET R FOREER O TIESA

moderate temperature;

e torestrict smoking in workplace; and . FIEFETESBRE © &
e to conduct safety inspection and training of fire prevention e EHEIT LR 2B MHETTH ARSI
regularly.

Fire safety equipment in the workplace

RIVEGARE Z 2R B
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The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the
Work Safety Law of the PRC, Regulations on Work-Related Injury
Insurance of the PRC and other applicable laws and regulations that
has a significant impact on the Group relating to provide a safety
working environment and protecting employees from occupational

hazards during the Reporting Period.

No non-compliance with law that resulted in significant fines or

sanctions had been reported during the Reporting Period.

There were no work-related fatalities reported for the years ended 31
December 2021, 2022 and 2023. During the Reporting Period, no loss

days due to work injury were noted.
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DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group always puts great emphasis on talent training and
believes that employees’ skills and experience are essential to
promoting the long-term development of the Group. Continuing
education is one of the effective ways to maintain employees’
competitiveness in the industry. Therefore, the Group annually
formulates annual training plan with an aim to enhance employees’
performance through effective training, counselling and in-service
development. The trainings cover various topics, including but is
not limited to, factoring business knowledge, asset management,
business process, qualification training for secretaries of the board

of listed issuers and internal control training for new employees.

The Group organises vocational guidance activities at irregular
intervals and make full disclosure of information relating to
career development in the Group through various channels. The
Group identifies suitable positions and career paths for employees
through an analysis of employees and the Group’s positions in
order to increase employees’ competitiveness. The administration
and human resources department formulates various action and
measures required to achieve employees’ career goals based
on their own conditions, such as participation in various human
resources development and training activities of the Group,
development of their networking, participation in courses outside

working hours and acquisition of relevant knowledge and skills
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During the Reporting Period, the percentage of employees trained  RFREHIMAE @ ZHlEE K& E BT FHZ IR
and the average training hours completed per employee are shown R BH DT ¢

as follows:
2023 2022

2023F 20224
Percentage of employees trained "o " 66% 75%
FIEETE D=
Percentage of employees trained by gender Nt?
RUERE S ZIRENE DLW
Male 70% 56%
St
Female 30% 44%
i
Percentage of employees trained by employee category N2
REEEHESZIRENBE DLW
Senior management 7% 1%
=RERE
Middle management 7% 25%
HRERE
General staff 86% 64%
ERET
Average training hours per employee N°t3) 6.5 hours 2.2 hours
BEREEFHZIRH 6.5/ \ B 2.2/ NB
Average training hours completed per employee by gender Mot 4
R B8 25 BB 8 5T A AT 19 32 31 R B )
Male 7.3 hours 2.5 hours
B 7.3/NEF 2.5/N\EF
Female 5.0 hours 1.8 hours
ogi 5.0/ B 1.8/ \B%
Average training hours completed per employee by employee category MNot4
RIEER R B D BB 8 5T KT 159 32 5l BE g0
Senior management 6.3 hours 5.5 hours
=REERE 6.3/NBF 5.5/]\BF
Middle management 4.0 hours 2.5 hours
hRERE 4.0/ BE 2.5/)NBF
General staff 7.1 hours 1.7 hours
ERET 7.1/NEF 1.7/ )\
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Note 1: Percentage of employees trained is calculated by dividing
the number of employees who took part in training by the

number of employees.

Note 2: The percentage of employees trained by category is
calculated based on the number of employees trained in
each category during the Reporting Period divided by the

number of employees who took part in training.

Note 3: Average training hours per employee is calculated by
dividing the total number of training hours by the number

of employees.

Note 4: Average training hours by categories is calculated
by dividing the total number of training hours for
such category by the number of employees in the

corresponding category.

LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group prohibits the use of forced labour and child labour,
and lists important notes of recruitment process in policies and
procedure of human and administration department. The Group
has stringent requirements for shortlisting employees. In recruiting
candidates for positions below management level, the Group
requests job applicants to provide identity card, academic certificate
of their highest level, professional certificates and employment
separation certificate regarding their former jobs for verifying their

identity.

If the management of the Group finds illegal employment of child
labour or forced labour within the Group, their employment contract
will be terminated immediately by the Group. After inquiry into
the cause and finding out persons held responsible, the Group
will impose appropriate punishment on those in violation of the
regulations. No employment of forced labour and child labour

occurred in the Group during the Reporting Period.
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The Group endeavours to protect human rights, creating a workplace
of respect, sincerity and fairness for its employees and customers,
and comply with all relevant laws and regulations in relation to
employment and labour that have a significant impact on the Group
including the Labour Law of the PRC and the Labour Contract Law of
the PRC. The Group did not record any major non-compliance during
the Reporting Period. No non-compliance with law that resulted in

significant fines or sanctions had been reported in 2023.

OPERATIONAL PRACTICES
Supply Chain Management

The objectives of the Group are to purchase goods from creditworthy
suppliers and ensure such suppliers provide good products that

meet the standards of the Group.

The Group believes that establishment of sustainable supply chain
and facilitation of interaction and communication with suppliers
and bankers will improve the confidence of customers and other
stakeholders on the Group. Therefore, the Group only maintains
long-term cooperative relationship with medical suppliers and
bankers of good creditworthiness, sound reputation, quality
product and service, good track record and eligibility. The Group's
purchasing scope mainly covers medical equipment, office supplies
and accessories etc. Currently, the Group’s main suppliers are
mostly from the PRC. Focusing on establishing close cooperation
relationship with its suppliers, the Group has been working together
with its suppliers to reduce their impact on the environment from
their production processes while ensuring their provision of quality

products and services.

Although most of its medical suppliers are designated by customers,
the Group has formulated written policies and guidance to monitor
suppliers’ performance regularly in order to track their service
quality more effectively. The Group will cease cooperation with

suppliers who fail to meet its service quality standards.
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During the Reporting Period, the number of suppliers by

geographical region is as follows:

RBEHA - R DOHEFHENT -

2023 e’ 2022 e’

2023 i1 20225 i1
Region
&
Mainland China 34 12
AEpNS
Hong Kong 6 6
&

Note 1: Suppliers refer to suppliers providing products and/or services

to the Group with total contract value of over RMBO. 1 million.
Product Responsibility

The objectives of the Group are to protect customers’ information

and keep customers free of worries.

The Directors and management team have extensive experience
in the financing services industry. The Group provides customised
financial leasing services tailored for customers who are in need
of relevant equipment in their business operations. In addition, the
Group provides its customers with financing and accounts receivable
management as well as consulting services. The Group has an
experienced and stable management team that allows it to deliver

reliable and efficient services to its customers.

In addition, the Group places strong emphasis on the confidentiality
of customers’ information. Although there are no existing laws
and regulations governing privacy in the PRC, in order to gain
confidence from customers and lower the risk of revealing
confidential information by the employees, the Group has established
an internal documentation management system, including
administrative measures for information privacy and implementing
rules for information privacy management, which specifies the
right procedures for the employees to handle the information of
the Company and the customers, so as to enhance the regulatory

mechanism and prevent the leakage of customers” information.
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o employees must have a sense of confidentiality and definitely

do not ask, say or look at anything that they should not;

° talking about or transmitting the Company’s confidential
matters in public places, via public telephones or public

network platforms is strictly prohibited;

° without the consent of the meeting organizers, employees may
not take photos, record or reproduce the confidential matters,

and strict punishment will be imposed once discovered;

° may not throw away drafts, first drafts or outdated documents
at discretion. If there is no retention value, such documents
should be destroyed in a timely manner. Such documents
should be treated as final drafts and be handled according to

confidentiality principles and requirements; and

o documents containing sensitive information of the customers
or the Company should be kept by specified personnel of each
department. Unless necessary, such information should not be

transmitted to other departments.

Moreover, the Group requires employees to sign confidentiality
agreements, which strictly require employees to follow the
rules regarding confidentiality management and the relevant
system established by the Group to perform their confidentiality
responsibilities, so as to protect the interest of the Group.
Confidentiality agreements specify the content and scope that the
staff should keep confidential, their confidentiality responsibilities
and liabilities for breach of contract. If employees disclose or
reproduce any trade secrets of the Group without the Group’s
consent and authorization, the Company will dismiss the employees

and reserve the right to institute legal proceedings.

The Group recognises the importance of intellectual property
protection, therefore it is dedicated to protecting and enforcing the
Group’s own intellectual property rights as well as the intellectual
property rights of third party. The Group will ensure terms in relation
to intellectual property rights are included in the cooperation

agreements between the Group and its business partners.
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Maintaining high quality standard for products and services are the
most important for sustainable development of the Group. The Group
ensures that the medical equipment provided for its customers are
in compliance with the Article 6 of the Regulation on the Supervision
and Administration of Medical Devices of the PRC, the medical device
products shall satisfy the national mandatory standards for medical
devices, and, if no such standard is available, meet the mandatory
industrial standards for medical devices, and registered or filed
product technical specification. The instruction manual and labelling
of the medical equipment are in compliance with the Provision on
the Management of Instructions and Labels of Medical Devices of
the PRC. After-sales and maintenance services are provided for the

Group's customers in order to boost their lifetime value.

During the Reporting Period, there were no recalls of products due to
safety and health reasons and no complaints related to product and

service were received.
Anti-Corruption

The objectives of the Group are to promote anti-corruption, anti-

money laundering and no bribery, extortion and fraud.

All the businesses operated by the Group are in compliance with the
national and local laws and regulations regarding the prevention
of bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering, including the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201) of the Hong Kong
Legislation. The Group requires its employees to strictly follow
the requirements of the aforesaid ordinances, in order to prevent

behaviours such as bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

Besides, the Group has established internal administrative rules
regarding anti-corruption, and implemented a comprehensive
mechanism to strictly monitor each employee, ensuring no employee
has any behaviour that violates the discipline, rules and laws, such as
behaviour for gaining personal interests, bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering. The Group is determined in combating corruption
and contribute in building a corruption-free society. If there are
any suspicious cases, employees can report to the management
in absolute secrecy, and such cases will be passed to the relevant

department for investigation.
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With a view to protecting the Group’s interest, the Group requires
employees to strictly follow the code of conduct listed in the
employee manual. The Group also provides relevant training to
employees regularly with an aim to enhance their awareness on

anti-corruption, money laundering and other illegal acts.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the
Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC and other applicable laws
and regulations that has a significant impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering during the Reporting
Period. There was no legal action against the Group or the employees

of the Group for corruption.

COMMUNITY
Community Investment

The Group deeply understands the importance of giving back to the
society, as such, the Group uses the best endeavors in providing
help. The Group encourages employees to participate in community
activities, and to contribute to the sustainability of a harmonious

society.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORTING GUIDE INDEX

A. Environmental

(RE - tERERHEEC) R

Disclosures

ARE RESEH
A1: Emissions
A1 B
General Disclosure Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws ~ Environmental
—MRBER and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating  I3%
to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
BRBRRIRERBIN - MKRLHPES AEREZEEY
HELSH : @EK  Rb)ETHETAREATZENHERERK
ROINER -
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data Emissions
FsE IR IR ALY B R AR R R B
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total Emissions
A2 BERBEHNE BE
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced Not applicable "’
A3 MELRZERVEE TR
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced Not applicable "%
AL FEXBERZEVEE @RI

A1.5 Description of emission targets set and steps taken to achieve Emissions

them

BE

A15 REATRTSZ AV BERE B R R AR BEL B R EREM SR

A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are  Waste production

handled, and a description of reduction targets set and steps EEZRMESE

taken to achieve them

AL6 HEEAERBERZMOE - REMATRIZAHE B

BRAEIELREMERNTR

Notel: During the course of business, the Company did not produce

any chemical or medical-related hazardous waste.

Note2: During the course of business, the Company did not produce
a large amount of non-hazardous waste. Therefore, it did not
include the data of non-hazardous waste in the calculation.

it -

Hiat2 :

AR BIRF TS EE BT T IWARE L (FTEE
KETIER B ZERY) °

ERAIRRG EE BT U EELABEE
BEEY - Bt » FARAIABIEEZEEYZ
BN EREA -
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A. Environmental
ARE

Disclosures
BEEEH

A2: Use of Resources
A2 ERER
General Disclosure

—REE

KPI
BASERUER

Note3: The Group’ s business operation does not involve production
process, no packaging material is consumed by the Group.

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water

and other raw materials.

BRERER (B8R  KREMEMH) SOBE -

A2.1
A2.1
A2.2
A2.2
A2.3

A2.3

A2.4

A2.4

A2.5
A2.5

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type
RERESNEE R SEERERERES

Water consumption in total and intensity

BRKEREE

Description of energy use efficiency targets set and steps
taken to achieve them

T BE TR RN FRT SL A B AR R A B iE Lk B IR AR EREY
g

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency targets set and steps
taken to achieve them
HAKEERKRRE B EMBE - BRI E R
R EREL B RIRRN TSR

Total packaging material used for finished products

SUk TR BEM B RE
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A. Environmental
ARE

Disclosures

REEH

A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

A3 RERRAER
General Disclosure

—RBE

KPI
BSERUER

Aé4: Climate Change
A4 RIREME

General Disclosure

—RINE

KPI
RSEUER

Policies on minimising the issuer’ s significant impact on the

environment and natural resources.

BIEBTARRFERRAERERERTENIR

A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them

A1 R EHHRERRAERNEAZERCRNERR
BT ENTH

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-

related issues which have impacted, and those which may impact,

the issuer.

B REHELR AR HBTAELY ENEARKEBEEEN

R

A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which
have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and
the actions taken to manage them

ALl HRER R AR U BITAELATENEARBKEREE -
FERREEFHTZENTT -

Environmental

BiE

Use of resources

BEREMA

Environmental

B

Climate change

AR
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B. Social
B.#t g

Disclosures
WEEE

B1: Employment
B1: EfE
General Disclosure
— MR BEE

KPI
FRRARUIER

B2: Health and Safety

B2: EREZE
General Disclosure

—fRIN R

KPI

il

ERIERR

Information on (a) the policies; and (b] compliance with

relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact

on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal,

recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,

equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other

benefits and welfare.

BRFHEEE BEREN  IHERE - RY - T5#

g Zlt  REBAREMFERENE @ (a)BER © Kb

BTHERTABERZENMEMERNROINER -

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group
and geographical region

B1.1 IR - EBEHER - FhcER iR E D RIEAR

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region

B1.2 iR - FEAAR MR D HRERKLLE

Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with

relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact

on the issuer relating to providing a safe working environment

and protecting employees from occupational hazards.

BFRRHZETIFREMREEEREBELLEN : (K

B RbETHETABEARENRBERLROINER -

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities.

B2.1 ET{ERARMILT M ABURLLER -

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.

B22 ATBIEARTIFRL -

B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored.

B2.3 i TR BRI 2186 - ANAERERITRE
BRITA °
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B. Social
B.#E

Disclosures
WEEE

B3: Development and Training

B3 : R RIEI
General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI
A

il

ERIERR

B4: Labour Standards
B4 : B TXH|
General Disclosure
—RRIRER

KPI
RRRABUIER

Policies on improving employees” knowledge and skills for

discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

BRARTHE B BT TIERE M ANB RN BUR - #aliE3|

EEIR

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management].

B3.1 MR REBER(NSREERE - FREERE)EDH
XlEEBEDLL

B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by
gender and employee category.

B3.2 MBI RESERIE D - BREETKIIINFHE
2o

Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with

relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact

on the issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BREMLEETHRHIETH : (aJIBK : Rb)ETHETAR

BEARENHEBERMROIER

B4.1 Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour.

B4.1 fitiRsT RIS E Al EE AR R ET MBHIST -

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices

when discovered.

B4.2 ful1ESRERBENEERRA RIS AT RN 25K

Development and training

TR RIE

Development and training

R S 35

Development and training

R N 35

Labor standards
8 T8

Labor standards
85 TAR

Labor standards
85 TAR
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B. Social
B.#t g

Disclosures
WEEE

B5: Supply Chain Management

B5 : {HpESEEE
General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI
FRRABUIER

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the

supply chain.
IR HEERANRE LTS EREBUR -

B5.1
B5.1
B5.2

B5.2

B5.3

B5.3

B5.4

B5.4

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

R E D HEERHE -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented and
monitored.

ft G R At EmaED - MERITHRE DR HE
BHA - AREREHNRTRERTE -
Description of practices used to identify environmental
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they
are implemented and monitored.

B R RS S ERE VIR Rt @ B R e B
5 ARARRARNTIT REEERITE

Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and services when
selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

st PR AE (I RO IR R (£ % P IR (R EE mm M IR TS VB 1]
ANABRRIIT REERITEA
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B. Social
B.#E

Disclosures

REEE

Bé: Product Responsibility

B6: EMEE

General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI
FASRAA

mJH

WIETR

Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to products and

services provided and methods of redress.

ERMRHEERTRBORERLZE BE  BRELES
HIAREHROTEN : (@B - RbJETHRITABEARE

MARRDER LR BINE R
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to

recalls for safety and health reasons.

B6.1 EERTEXREmMAH T A% 2RI FIE M m/AR M
BADLE °

B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.

B6.2 HERARNE M MARFE AR BB A R EETTE -

B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and

protecting intellectual property rights.

B6.3 fhiuf B2 4 & N RIS AN AR ARV IE D] -

Bé6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.

Bé.4 HHILE ST B2 NEREYIZFF

B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies, and how they are implemented and monitored.

B6.5 filH B E ERHRIE RFLBEER - URMEERITRER
JIE o

Product Responsibility
EmAE

Product Responsibility
EmAE

Product Responsibility

EmAfE

Product Responsibility
EmAfE

Product Responsibility
EmAl

Product Responsibility
EmEE
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B. Social
B.#t g

Disclosures
WEEE

B7: Anti-corruption
B7 : KES
General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI
iz

i

ERIEIR

il

Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

BRI LLRERE - B - BRF RO RER ¢ ()R ¢ R(b)EST

HEITABERTENRBERLROINER -

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.

B7.1 RERPALHTARERERL Y EBENETHA
MBI A MFAARER -

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-
blowing procedures, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

B7.2 faiutifreiiait M EBWER - A RABRIT RER A

B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to

directors and staff.

B7.3 HAAESENE TRRHMRESEI -

B8: Community Investment

B8 : L EBIRE
General Disclosure
—RR 5

KPI
RRRABIER

Note4: During the Reporting Period, there was no legal action against — K4 : RIFELIA - TSR G NE F 5 K& [

the Group and the employees of the Group for corruption. B THIE SHIFRASME -

Policies on community engagement to understand the

needs of the communities where the issuer operates and to

ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’

interests.

BRALHE2ERTHREEMELRFENERALEBED

SEBHRNEOBER

B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
environmental concerns, labour needs, health, culture,
sport).

B8.1 HIEREE(MHE - REFE  BIHFK BFE -
Xk - $85) -

B8.2 Resource contributed to the focus areas.

B8.2 HEITHRHIEIRIRA -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B X B AR

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN] CO., LTD.
(incorporated in the PRC with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of FY
Financial (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (the "Company”] and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter connectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 120 to 268, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2023, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting

policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA"] and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs"] issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.

HERBEAECRIDENHERABBRR
(R BN ARAR])

=R

HMEERINENE 1208 E 268N ERMEM
ERINBOERAB(EAR]) REKNBAT
(5% [BEE]) 2R B®RE - ZFREWHR
RBER202BF12A3NBOEETBRAE - &
EZRALFENGAERMEMEEKER 58
RRBHR MFARBMERIARLRE MTERRMM
it BRERGEEER

BMRAE  GEMBBRREREEESHAAE
((BEBEHMAg DEMRNBEN B REEAEE
M B R BEBMR2023F12A31BHGE
SRR IA R EZ A I FE MRS B RIE &R
EHReRE WEBRBBQMEPINREREZE
RERE o

RRNER

BPCREZEGFMASRMOTEEZLEL
([BEBERELDETES - WAEZFENTH
BECEARE R BAN B2 A P RERAER
BEE—HPEE— SR - REFBSFEMAE
MK BERGEEER TR A - BB

R BEEE YEETTATFAHEMBEREL - K
15 - RIPIFMESHEZRELR D SEE S

BB AR AR -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were

addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial

FAREXEE

R EZFRDRERMNEFHE - RALEAS
NEFEAMBHREANBEZRAERNFE - ZFFH
DERMPEZEEVBBRREXEEAERRRE
B ZMTEUZSEFTRREERNER

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment of finance lease receivables and accounts

receivables

Refer to notes 3, 19 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Key audit matter
HRESER

B E R E UK IA K B W AR ORLE

E2HEA M FRRMEES - 19%20

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMRERRNAEEFARERSEE

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's finance lease
receivables and account receivables are approximately
RMB8,230,000 and RMB214,299,000 respectively. The
assessment of impairment of finance lease receivables
and accounts receivables under the expected credit loss
("ECL") model requires the application of judgement and
use of subjective assumptions by management.
HZE2023F12A31H ° ESREZBREEERKTAKE
W BR 5K 53 Bl 49 45 A R #8,230,000 7T F2 A R #214,299,000
T HHEERR(RMEEEEDEXETHRENEE
FEW SRR M MR FURERHE R AREAER - RS
EEEERAAE R EREBRRR

We obtained an understanding of the key internal controls
on how the management assesses the impairment of
finance lease receivables and trade receivables under ECL
model.

HME TREEEENAREEREEBIERAFERENR
SRR K B 5 e WK IR R BB H R 5 A BRI -

We performed reviews the credit profiles, guarantors
and the collaterals (if any) as well as external evidence
and factors of finance lease receivables and accounts
receivables on a sample basis, to assess whether
management’s assessment of ECL was appropriate.
BAHERRBR ERARERR(A) - SRR - BE
M E FRUGRIE M U AR R A S TR A - ARHEEIRE
HIEREEBBENTHETEE
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The Key audit matter
BERERSBE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RARBLENEEERELEER

We have identified the impairment of the finance lease
receivables and account receivables as a key audit matter
because of the significant management judgement,
assumptions and estimations adopted in the calculation of
ECL allowance and may be subject to management bias.

AP B E B R UGR IR K R AR SR BB R E R RS
%EE  ARETERAEEBRERERRATEARNE
EEHE - REREMATAR

L\I:,A

REEXIEREERENTE -

We also evaluated the parameters and assumptions used
in the measurement of ECL such as criteria for judging
significant increases in credit risk, definition of credit-
impaired financial asset, parameters for measuring ECL
and forward-looking information.

BT EFRREEBHERRAN2ENRR -
EERABRARENNRE  FERESREENTE
EHEEBEN2BNAIRIEES -

We also assessed the appropriateness of the Group's

puball-i

it

disclosure of the impairment of finance lease receivables
and accounts receivables, credit risk grading and the

related credit risk.

TG BERERER A E R UGRIE &R AR SOR
B FERBRIEAREREERRIESE -
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Valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss

Refer to notes 3 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Key audit matter
HRENLER

BAVEFABENEREENGE

F2RERE

ARz

SRR FEI 16 ©

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMRERRNAEEFARELSER

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are approximately
RMB63,102,000. The fair values of financial assets that
are not quoted in active markets are determined by using
valuation techniques. Valuation techniques used include
income approaches, market approaches and option
pricing models. The Group uses market-observable data
to the extent it is available. Management judgement and
estimates are required for the selection of appropriate
valuation parameters, assumptions and modeling
techniques.
M2023%12A310 © EEERAFEFABRSNEHE
EZ SO R/AR63,102,0007T  5E B 5 I &R
BzemBEEZ A HEEBEMBGERMERE - A2
Tﬁﬁ%ﬁf”@%ﬂ&)\% - SENEEERS - BEXEE
BERAMSABREE - BREENGERE
&*%*”&m*Eﬁﬁ@f’ﬁﬂi#ﬂﬁﬁ&ﬁ?

We have identified the valuation of financial assets at fair

R

value through profit or loss as a key audit matter because
of the significance management judgement, assumptions
and estimations adopted in the selection of valuation
techniques and use of significant unobservable inputs and
may be subject to management bias.
HASZRAHEFABENEREENAERTE SRERE
%EE  AREEEGRERNAERAERTAEBRE AR
BREATEANEEEHE  BREGETATEEXE
EEERENTE -

We assessed the selection of the valuation technique and
assessed the reasonableness of key assumptions, which
contained within the fair value calculations including
marketability discount, minority discount and discount
rates, used in the calculations. When assessing the key
assumptions, we discussed with management’s expert
to understand and evaluate management’s basis for
determining the assumptions.
HIFRHA B ERMAER - XFEAERAR
SHARBRENEEN - BREMSRBIETE
BB R - NAEBERERE - RAREEEE
AT @EHEEREEEERR AR

We also engaged our valuation expert to assist us in

FEHENE
D BIHET

E1TIER -

assessing the reasonableness of the assumptions and
discount rates used by management by comparing with
comparable companies with similar risk profiles and market
information.

BATEZREHESE  BBLRARRURARBAETISE
KRB LB AT - BBV RIFIRHEE R B A A RR MAER
KGRI -

We also assessed the appropriateness of the Group’s fair
value disclosure of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.

BT eRE EEERATFESABENS
BENEE -

CREENTE
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Impairment assessment on cash generating units of energy

storage business segment

Refer to notes 3, 14, 21 and 32 to the consolidated financial

statements.

The Key audit matter
HREZSBE

HiFEB o BREELEMHRETE

BRI E Y BHRRMTES 14~ 21K%32°

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMRERRNIREFARERER

The Group's cash generating units ["CGU") of energy
storage business segment consisted of certain, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and goodwill with carrying
values of RMB9,071,000, RMB647,000 and RMB1,638,000
respectively as at 31 December 2023. During the year
ended 31 December 2023, no impairment loss was
recognised against plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and goodwill of energy storage business CGU in the
People’s Republic of China (the "PRC").
R2023F12A310 © EERERERBOHMRASELSN
((REELEEN ) BRETHELKRE  EREEENE
2 REED R RARK?,071,0007T - AR 647,0007T %
AE#1,638,0007T - B E20235F 12331 HIEFE - PP E
ARKEMBE([HEDOREEEBRSELEMNEBE LR
- EREEENBBYEEZRERSS

We have identified the impairment assessment of the CGU
of energy storage business segment as a key audit matter
because of the significance management judgement,
assumptions and estimations when performing the
impairment test and may be subject to management bias.
PSR R D B e EE B RER AT AR
BERER  AREETRENRFSRERNEEEH
i RERRGE YEXINERERENTE -

Our audit procedures were designed to assess the
reasonableness of the selection of valuation model,
adoption of key assumptions and input data by reference
to the historical information together with other external
available information. In particular, we have tested the
future cash flow forecast prepared by management
on whether it is agreed to the budget approved by the
directors of the Company and compared the budget with
actual results available up to the report date. We have
also evaluated the appropriateness of the assumptions,
including the future revenue, the future expenses and profit
margin, against latest market expectations.
BPNEZEFEERB2ERELEEREMINGAISE
FRFHEHERAEE - BRERNVFARBARENS
Bt AlgE - RAEREREBELNARARERETRA
RS BAREFENTAEETAR  TEREEE
EHRE AR RSN ERFEFLER - RAITEERFHM SR
AR RR(BERKNRE - RERFAXRMNER)RESIEET
BRI
We have also assessed the discount rate employed in
the calculation of value-in-use by reviewing its basis of
calculation and comparing its input data to market sources.
BB A EERBEREANERE - FAREHE
STEEER S H i ABIBRETISIORIELE -
As any changes in these assumptions and input to valuation
model may result in significant financial impact, we have
tested management’s sensitivity analysis in relation to the
key inputs to the impairment assessment which included
changes in future revenue and expenses.
ZERBRAERE 2@ A BUIRNEMEB A e ERE A
FE RIS RENENERE ABE (BRI RS
KA EE) ARERENGREDN -
We also assessed the appropriateness of the Group's
disclosure of assessment of CGU of energy storage
business segment.
BAIEHE BERESREEEEDHRSEEEMFENE
HEEE -
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OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022 were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 30 March
2023.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements, or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard.

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. SR E A E R IRHBERA

HttE5|

EREBE2022F12A31B IEFE 2R &M B
RITAR —KRBENEZ - 22 HBE0R 202363 A
ORHZEFHRRERAKLENER -

Hitp&E¥

BERRESAHHEMERNEE - RHERBFEHRN
FHRANZEER - LT EERE M BHRE RA
RS

BPESREMBRERNBERL TIREEMER - ],
T EZFEMEREREFATANER SR

PEZEA P HRAMS - HANEEAHERMD
B YHEMBETFERRMENIDEGANE
Wz ARFIEFLRIETH TRANBAFEEXR
EERUFFEERHERRML - ERERMAZHANITH
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
of the Company determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are also responsible for overseeing

the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.

BAREERAEEMGSMHHRREAK
ENEE

BERRESARERETEGTMAGRANETE
MBHRELNRBBR RPN EER ERERE
M EaiRaBHRE  THERRRERSTH
WRABE T FEBHRGF R M BN E AR
RERILFT BRR R EESI B E

ERBEAVBRERE - EAREFAAR
ity BRENFELERN  YHEEEBERTRE
HEEKEAENER  URERFELLE RS
Hit i ERAREREER BEEEBRAMEL
R EE M E A TTHO R RTTRAERID

AEENAREEE ERENMBHEBE -

BB B GREBRRAENEE

BB RAREEMBHRRBEBEE MFEAR
WEF AR M B RN B RRAMS S RRE
WHEHERMEROZBENRS - WIRREAIH
BERBGRRER BTUERBE)RE - BRI
SMRIEEMAE - RPIBTIRAREHAS - BHE
MEMATREIEERT - AEFREERKFR
& ETRERERBEEEFLEAETEZ - £X
—ERHRRATFER AR - SRR AT K
FFEEEAREIEE - WA IR TRHISE R BRI B B o [ e
K F EERERBATRE M BRRAEL AR
FORTE » AIB R RBRRRIEERX -
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise fERBEBEZELEITEZAAREYT @ BRADE
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism — FREEE T - WA REIZEREE - BT :
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may

cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. B &HE CGEI) XKD R A 7
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o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely

responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safes wards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh

the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent

auditor’s report is Mr. Wong Hon Kei, Anthony.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Hon Kei, Anthony

Practising Certificate Number: P05591

Hong Kong, 27 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e BmkEMEE R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

2023 2022
20234 20224
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
it =E AR®T T ARBT T
(Restated)
(F2E51)
Revenue Wz 5 60,364 29,501
Cost of sales SHER A (41,981) (16,909)
Gross profit ER 18,383 12,592
Other income and gains HAaWA RIES 7 10,938 12,136
Operating expenses AR (9,363) (5,812)
Administrative expenses 1THFX (24,880) (21,234)
Reversal of impairment loss EhE M E WA
(impairment loss) on finance lease FEUARFR &
receivables, accounts receivables and FEY FARS A B FRIE
amounts due from related companies, net ﬂ@@ﬁgﬁé@
ORER1R)F8R 9 10,209 (38,251)
Finance cost BhE A AR 8 (190) =
Share of (loss) profit of an associate AEEEE N T (B8 %= ) (1,010) 1,816
Profit (Loss) before tax BR%t AT 7 (518 9 4,087 (38,753)
Income tax (expenses) credit FiiEHi (B ) e 10 (3,458) 6,058
Profit (loss) for the year Frmfl(E8) 629 (32,695)
Other comprehensive expenses that HES T 5O R
will not be reclassified subsequently to ITE 5 ) HoAth 2
profit or loss: E :
Changes in fair value of financial assets BATHES AR MEE
at fair value through other comprehensive WA Z & @& E )
income (“FVTOCI’) N EZE([RAFE
STAHMEERA | - (555)
Restoration to original cost for o DW= /NI
the investment at FVTOCI subsequently N EFAEMEH
becoming an associate WAZREBEEYG
(DN - (1,914)
Other comprehensive expense for the year FRHEMEEEX - (2,469)
Total comprehensive income (expenses) FAZEBA (BXR)
for the year fazE 629 (35,164)
Profit (Loss) for the year attributable to: J«X;Ifgﬁﬁ:%@fﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁﬂ
Owners of the Company PN/ T%ﬁ/\ 4,746 (29,504)
Non-controlling interests FEPEA (4,117) (3,191)
629 (32,695)
Total comprehensive income (expenses) UTATEEEFAZEH
for the year attributable to: WA (B ) 4% -
Owners of the Company ARFIEEA 4,746 (31,973)
Non-controlling interests FEVEARHE RS (4,117) (3,191)
629 (35,164)
Earnings (loss) per share SREF (EE) -
Basic and Diluted (RMB cents) EXNEE(ARED) 11 1.32 (8.21)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BB BINAR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12431 H1FF/E

2023 2022
20234 20224
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt = AR¥T T AR¥T T
(Restated)
(BE7)
Non-current assets FREBEE
Plant and equipment TR B 5% 14 16,060 21,476
Intangible asset B EE 15 1,630 1,883
Finance lease receivables BhE T E R WGRIA 19 - 300
Accounts receivables FEUBR IR 20 944 21,036
Right-of-use assets EREEE 32 6,890 9,572
Financial assets at fair value through BATERT ABER
profit or loss ("FVTPL") TREE(#RAVE
FTABR]) 16 63,102 48,706
Interest in an associate N A WNEI P 18 50,806 51,816
Goodwill kS 21 1,747 1,747
Deferred tax assets RIERIAE B 22 15,639 17,607
156,818 174,143
Current assets REEE
Inventories T8 23 4,619 634
Finance lease receivables B AT E R GRIA 19 8,230 14,940
Accounts receivables e AR R 20 213,355 98,417
Contract asset BHEE 17 - 4,572
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FANZIE - 54 &
H h e Y 5RIE 24 9,248 12,049
Amounts due from related companies FEU BRHE R B FIE 25 30,116 22,026
Amount due from a non-controlling interest  FEURIEHEASHE S HFRIE 25 1,900 1,900
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFESEHFED 26 62,263 182,949
329,731 337,487
Current liabilities nEAE
Trade and other payables B 5 NE MR FIE 27 19,169 22,268
Receipts in advance TAWRIE 28 212 1,090
Contract liabilities /BHEE 29 - 293
Amount due to a related company FEAST BAESE R B FRIE 25 = 7,200
Amount due to a non-controlling interest P FE1E AR M 2 B IR 25 = 13,900
Lease liabilities HERE 32 2,470 2,681
Bank borrowing RITEE 31 5,000 -
Tax payables JER IR 4,947 5,003
31,798 52,435
Net current assets REBEEFE 297,933 285,052
Total assets less current liabilities EELBERRBERE 454,751 459,195
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
REPBINAR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H1FF/E

2023 2022
20234 20224
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt = AR¥T T AR¥T T
(Restated)
(&)
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE
Receipts in advance TalRIA 28 - 551
Deposits from finance lease customers REMEHERP R
and suppliers HEmRES 30 - 1,863
Deferred tax liabilities BLERIERE 22 161 199
Lease liabilities HERE 32 3,784 6,095
3,945 8,708
Net assets EEFE 450,806 450,487
Capital and reserves EARRf#EE
Share capital AR 32 359,340 359,340
Reserves i 38 84,505 79,616
Equity attributable to owners RATEE AEEER
of the Company 443,845 438,956
Non-controlling interests FEIERR RS 6,961 11,531
Total equity FERAEEE 450,806 450,487

The consolidated financial statements on pages 120 to 268 were £ 120B £ $ 28BN EAMBBREEEEZTSRN
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 202443327 B #L/& RIRRETIEE - WH FIIALE

March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by: =2
LI Peng Z=ff8 WANG Jianxing & H#
Director 2% Director 2%
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GARREDE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

Attributable to owners of the Company

LGN

Financial
asset at Non-

Share Merger Capital  Statutory FvTiocl Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
BATEFA
A2 ENA
fer
R ARE  EARE  iRRE  HERE  REE & FEREs  BEAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARMBTR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARETR
(note [al) [note (b)) (note [c])
(Makal)  (WsEbD) (G

At1 January 2022 (as originally stated) 20221818 (R25) 359,340 1582 31,097 17795 2469 63,304 475,987 - 475,587
Effects on adoption of Amendments REesEl

10 HKAS 12 (Note 2 bz i) - - - - - 1 i - 11
At1 January 2022 (as restated) 202251518 (BE5) 359,340 1582 31,097 17795 2489 63315 475,598 - 475,598
Loss for the year (as restated) EREEEES]) - - - - - (29,504) (29,504) (3191) (32,695
Other comprehensive expenses A2 ERR
- Changes in fair value of financial assets ~ —ZATEFTAZBZENAN

atFvTac SRAR/ATEED - - - - (555) - (555) - [555]
- Restoration to original cost for -BERARERAZRATE

the investment in FYTOCI SARMEERAZ

subsequently becoming an associates REREEARA - - - - (1914 - (1914) - (1914)
Total comprehensive expenses for the year ~ FMZARZ LR - = - - (2469 (29,504) (31.973) (3191 (35,164
Appropriation to statutory reserve BAEERE = = - 485 - (485) - - -
Dividends paid (Note 12) BfifRE(Hi2) - - - - - (6,669) (4,669) - (6,669)
Business acquisition (Note 42) e UR) - - - - - - - 5,432 5,43
Capital contribution by non-controlling SRR A (W)

interests [note (d]] - - - - - - - 9,290 9,290
At 31 December 2022 R2023E128318 359,340 1982 31,097 18,280 = 28,657 438,956 11,531 450487
At 1 January 2023 (as originally stated) R2023F1 518 (R31) 359,340 1,582 31,097 18,260 - 28,767 439,066 11,619 450,688
Effects on adoption of Amendments BB SRR 125

10 HKAS 12 (Note 2 ya(Mi) - - - - - (110l (10 (8] (198)
At1 January 2023 (as restated) 202351518 (BE5) 359,340 1,582 31,097 18,280 - 28,657 438,956 11,531 450,487
Profit (loss) and total comprehensive income A (B51E)

[expenses] for the year REENE(F)EE - - - - - 4,746 4,746 (6,117) 629
Appropriation to statutory reserve BAEERE = - - 196 - (196) = = =
Deemed capital contribution arising Wﬁﬂﬁmﬁé?ﬁ%ﬁﬁiz

from the waiver of amount due to non- RiEARTE

controlling interest - - 3,900 - - - 3,900 - 3,900
Acquisition of additional equity interest WiEk2 B AR RE

ina non-wholly owned subsidiary (Note (b))~ (Ff&E(b]) - - (3,757) - - - (3,757) (453) (4,210)

At 31 December 2023 R2023E12A31A 359,340 1,582 31,260 18,476 - 33,207 443,865 6,961 450,806
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GAEREBE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

Note:

The nature and purposes of reserves within equity are as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c]

(d]

Merger reserve

The merger reserve amounted to approximately RMB1,582,000 as
at 31 December 2023 and 2022 represents the different between
the consideration and the nominal value of share capital of Beijing
Shan Shan Medical Technology Development Co., Ltd ("Beijing
Medical’), a subsidiary of the Group pursuant to the business
combination under common control.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Company represents (i) the difference of
the shares issued at premium over par value, net of share issue
expenses, [ii] waive of amount due to non-controlling interest
of Ningbo Shanshan Contract Energy Management Co., Ltd, the
subsidiaries of the Company, agreed to waive the outstanding
balances during the year ended 31 December 2023 as set out in
Note 25(d] to consolidated financial statements, and (iii] acquisition
of the Company acquired additional equity interest in the
subsidiaries Ningbo Shanshan Contract Energy Management Co.,
Ltd, amounting to approximately RMB4,210,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in the
People’s Republic of China (the "PRC") and Articles of Association
of the company incorporated in the PRC now comprising the Group,
i.e. the PRC Operational Entity, it is required to appropriate 10% of
the annual net profits of the PRC Operational Entity, after offsetting
any prior years’ losses as determined under the PRC accounting
standards, to the statutory reserve fund before distributing any net
profit. When the balance of the statutory reserve fund reaches 50%
of the registered capital of the PRC Operational Entity, any further
appropriation is at the discretion of shareholders. The statutory
reserve fund can be used to offset prior years” losses, if any, and
may be capitalised as capital, provided that the remaining balance
of the statutory reserve fund after such issue is no less than 25% of
registered capital.

It is represented by the capital contribution by non-controlling
interests of Jiangsu Anshi Commercial Energy Storage System
Co., Ltd and Guangdong YuanYu Jishi Xinxi Technology Limited,
the subsidiaries of the Company, after the acquisition as set out
in note 42 during the year ended 31 December 2022, amounting
to approximately RMB8,800,000 and approximately RMB490,000
respectively with no change in the ownership interests.

Kt -

BmARFEAMEERE R

(a)

)

(c]

(d]
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=N

20234 R 20224F 12 31 AW & GFE B A A
E#1,562,0007T - EIRIEHFIFEHE T Y F75
EHAEENE NI REE BRI ERE
R 2 5] ([ A BB | ) (1B R AN ETEZE 7R -

KR BB E A GH 5 (1) 12 B (1B S 7T A9 R (7
BIZE (B RGE7THS) - i) B E20234F
12A31HILFE - FIEMEAXREINE L A
BREEA RIERERER ] EN IR
BIB R KB ERE (BR A B HREN
25(d)) « Rlii)& E20234 12531 A 1L F/&F » &K
RAREEHIB A A1 R EEAFIEREEER
REIRTEEIINRAE - 2 EBHIABARE4,210,0007T -

SETE R

WRIZHEARHFIE ([ B ) 16REEER K
A EE A IE T Bl A 2 2 7 (BN ]
BERR)ABMERAER  REHRES E
BT EREE R B FRERE  HAR
TR AE AT F 5 o BIAE & B R 4 2 )F FIAIA.
10% B EEEMBER ° WEEREEAAFET
RS & TR M E AR a950% » (Ff i — 5%
KRR ERTE < EZEFHEE AR AH
BEFEER(WE)  LAERERRA 1
REBETEEZEREE R TRBTRELR
A MERRI25% °

FEBCZ 202249 12 31 H 1F F BT # L0 & H
BHERABERAGRER TFEAIE BRI
BR 2 a] (KRBT 42 BT 8L B 14 19 B 2K 1 el
BARA])ZHERERHE  FFIBAREL
8,800,0007T K #IA E#490,000T - AT A #E#EZ
A fEEE) -



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FAERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

2023 2022
2023F 20225
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBT T
Cash flows from operating activities RETEZRERE
Profit (loss) before tax BRPrAS A AR A (E518) 4,087 (38,753)
Adjustment for: SAELATRIA
Bank interest income RITHEHA (2,666) (2,372)
Depreciation of plant and equipment B R ETE 3,497 3,895
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 2,698 2,217
Amortisation of intangible asset & 253 253
loss on written off of plant and equipment [R5 B 5% s SE s 18 2,065 =
Change of fair value of financial assets BRATHEFTABEN SR
at FVTPL, net BEZATEES
R 800 1,294
(Reversal of impairment losses) JEWER R R ETHE
impairment loss on accounts and JFEWRIE OR B B 1B 1
finance lease receivables, net 1) R (EEE - JFEE (10,614) 38,689
Impairment loss (reversal of FE UK AR X B SR IEDR(E S
impairment loss) on amounts BOREBERE)
due from related companies 405 (438)
(Reversal of impairment loss) BHEECRERBE
impairment loss on contract asset B )R EEE (49) 49
Impairment loss on other receivables HAb R IR (B 18 693 1,351
Interest expenses on bank borrowings RITIERAEFX 82 -
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBBNEMX 479 347
Imputed interest income on E Z EWRIER)
trade receivables HEE R SUWA (623) (457)
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment HERE KR EE KR (128) (1)
Loss on termination of leases KIEHEEE 36 =
Gain on disposal of financial assets HEZRAFERTA
at FVTPL B r S RE AR (1,609) -
Share of loss (profit) of an associate AEEE S R R (E518) & A 1,010 (1,816)
Operating profits before working capital EEESEHAIN
changes Spinvl 416 4,258
Increase in inventories FEEMN (3,985) (591)
(Increase) decrease in finance leases and A& HE R UGRIE
accounts receivables R U BR R (3800 ) R A (76,599) 151,358
Decrease (increase) in contract asset aREERD (M) 4,621 (4,621)
Decrease (increase) in prepayments, A - ZS REAM
deposits and other receivables FEWGRIER A (38 0) 2,108 (6,439)
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 MEMERFIER A (4,962) (36,348)
(Decrease) increase in contract liabilities SRBECRD )L (293) 293
(Decrease) increase in receipts in advance  FEUWFKIE (4> )10 (1,429) 21
Increase in amounts due from related FE U B~ 7
companies FRIBIE AN (15,695) =
Cash (used in) from operating activities e EE(FTA)MERSE (95,818) 107,931
Interest received B WS 2,666 2.372
Income tax paid BT (1,584) (2,021)
Net cash (used in) from operating activities ~ #&&&EEN(FTR ) FT15E
REEER (94,736) 108,282
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FAERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

2023 2022
20235 20225
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
By & AR¥ET T AR¥T T
Cash flows from investing activities RETEBZRERE
Proceeds from disposal of plant and HEME &REZ ST
equipment 15 1,999 3,254
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets ~ HE&ERATFET ABZFH
at FVTPL TREE L FISHIR 4,613 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ~ BBE¥%¥ - K5 N&E (2,017) (4,862)
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL BEZRATHERT ABRN
TREE (18,000) (35,000)
Purchase of financial assets at FVTOC| BERATESAHEME
HBRANEREE - (34,465)
Acquisition of subsidiaries YeBE P 2 A 42 - (3,634)
Net cash used in investing activities RETEFTARSFHR (13,605) (74,707)
Cash flows from financing activities REIECRERE
New bank borrowing raised FBIRITRER 5,000 -
Acquisition of additional equity interest in WE—FKIE2EHRE
a non-wholly owned subsidiary il PNSIE RN 2 (4,210) =
Interest elements of lease rentals paid BEfHERSF S (479) (347)
Capital elements of lease rentals paid ENEERSERES (2,574) (3,249)
Capital contribution by non-controlling FEIER R HE
interest - 9,290
Repayment to a non-controlling shareholder fEE—XKMBARZ—%
of a subsidiary IR AR R 5RIE (10,000) =
Interest paid EASHLE (82) =
Dividends paid EAERE - (4,669)
Net cash (used in) from financing activities R&EEE (FrH)FBEE
HEE 38 (12,345) 1,025
Net (decrease) increase in cash and RERALEEWORED)
cash equivalents by iipezdoc] (120,686) 34,600
Cash and cash equivalents at FHNRERFASEEY
beginning of year 182,949 148,349
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRAESRECEEY 62,263 182,949
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

GENERAL INFORMATION

FY Financial (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. ("the Company”] was
established in the People Republic of China (the "PRC")
on 7 December 2012 as a sino-foreign equity joint venture
enterprise and was converted to a joint stock company with
limited liability under the Company Law of the People Republic
of China (the "PRC") on 10 September 2015. The address of
its registered office is Room 201, Block A, No.1, Qianwan
First Road, Qianhai Shenzhen- Hong Kong Cooperation Zone,
Shenzhen, Guangdong, the PRC and the principal place of
business is Room 1603, Cheung Kei Building, No.128 Xinzhou
11th Street, Futian District, Shenzhen, Guangdong, the PRC.
The Company listed shares ("H Shares”) have been listed on
the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 23 May 2017.

The Company is principally engaged in the provision of finance

leasing, sale-leaseback, factoring and advisory services.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of finance
leasing, sale leaseback, factoring, advisory services, trading of
electronic products, investments holding, provision of 5G base
stations site space and energy storage business in the PRC.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35.

The functional currency and presentation currency of the

Company and the subsidiaries are Renminbi ("/RMB").

—RER

ERBERECRID RO BRABN20124F
12A7TREREAREMBE([HREA]) KA
RINEBREADEIR2015F9 108 1RIE
(REAREMBEARNE)SHIARMDBRA
7] o HifEmmit AP BERS FIIm
AERBAERATE — B I15ARR201E » £
DA AT B ERERYITE B EFM
T 128 EEKRE1603F - ARR) L™
BD (THER ) 82017455 A 23 AR B R & B
BRBHBR AR ([BRFT)GEM £ -

ARRIERUEREREME  ERAE
PRI 2 iE R ARTS ©
AEEETERNTERFRERERE - €18
e - RE - BARY ETERES K
B - RHSCEISH = KL ET o
HT BB AR RBHNMIFESS -

ARRRMBERRNINGEEE R 2GRS
ARE(TAR®E]D -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BT R IR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2. FERSEMERELEN([HEBHK

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS HER )
(“HKFRSs”)
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily NE R A AV HTE] RIS ] BB B
effective for the current year R 52
In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time, the RAFEE  XEBDBXERTEBEE:
following new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong MAg((BERETMAE]) BHNHIR
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “"HKICPA"), RIEFT BB B HREER([BEBHBREE
which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period Al]) - ZELERREFTABREEWE2023F
beginning on 1 January 2023: 1 A1 B FRFE B S £
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts BB REERE175 REBAEL
(including the October (82020510 A k20225
2020 and February 2022 AR BRI B REER
Amendments to HKFRS 17) FNTRIETH)
Amendments to Hong Kong  Definition of Accounting ERePER([EBETE e E(BIN)
Accounting Standard Estimates Bl ) E8RIERT AR
("HKAS") 8
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets BRGTENERBIA HE-QRFELEZEE
and Liabilities arising from LB EEE RS
a Single Transaction 18
Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform-Pillar BB ENF12RETAR  BEBEBHIRE-—SH
Two model Rules TEHRA
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting ERSHHENSE1ER BEREIBER
and HKFRS Practice Policies BRMBREENEL
Statement 2 WEFWRBIA
Except as described below, the application of the new and B TPt E SN - IRANFEE fE B FA] R A S
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no BB BEREELHARAEEBNRAFE B
material impact on the Group's financial positions and FFEENNTERRARKRBR,UZELE
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the PSRRI EER T EEATE -

disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

Impact on application of Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 - Disclosure of Accounting

Policies

The amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement
2 Making Materiality Judgements provide guidance and
examples to help entities apply materiality judgements to
accounting policy disclosures. The amendments aim to help
entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more
useful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose
their ‘significant” accounting policies with a requirement
to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding
guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in

making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The application of the amendments has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial performance and positions, but has
affected the disclosures of accounting policies as set out in

note 3.

ERERBMBEREEN(EFEME
HER @)

R A AV R AMERT BB R

B ELER ()

ERAEBEENEIRNREBYHRE
HABEBREB2RBIT R - RESFTR
R E

ARG EAE IR LB BN BREERER
HHRIFMEFTAMEHEAH IR IEE MNP
& NEDERE S BRBRBEAER
HHE - B AR ERDERIEHREEAN
SRR RE  SERREE [EAISHRK
ROBREROWEE [T 2 |S5TBERNE
Ko WRMEBIRR A N EREZ MK
FHSMIEESEN ST BRNBAIRE

FERZEEFIAHARENTBRIR LM
WEEATE  BEESTBRRNEE @ 5F
RHIEES ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BT R IR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 12
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction

The amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exemption of deferred tax liabilities and deferred
tax assets so that it no longer applies to transactions that, on
initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences, such as leases and decommissioning
liabilities. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a
deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is
available) and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences
arising from these transactions. The amendments shall be
applied to transactions related to leases and decommissioning
obligations at the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented, with any cumulative effect recognised as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at that
date. For all other transactions, the amendments are applied to
those transactions that occur after the beginning of the earliest

period presented.

The Group previously applied HKAS 12 requirements to
the relevant assets and liabilities as a whole. Temporary
differences relating to relevant assets and liabilities are
assessed on a net basis. Upon application of the amendments,
the Group has recognised a separate deferred tax asset and a
deferred tax liability for all deductible and taxable temporary
differences associated with the right-of-use assets and the

lease liabilities.

The Group recognises the cumulative effect of initially applying
the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained earnings at the beginning of the earliest period
presented.This change in accounting policy did not have any
impact on the cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2022
and 2023.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B BT R I aE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. FEAHEBHEREEDN(EHEBEE

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) wmEER ) ®)
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily INFE E R E| £ EHE] B &M1EE] & BBt

TSR ()

R BT ERAE 1258 REE — %
SEEZEERAGHEBZIELEN AN

effective for the current year (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 12
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from

a Single Transaction (Continued) 2(%)
The effect of change in accounting policies as a result of AEREBLHERF 12T AEHNE

S HE TS B R B 2 U s 2 A
R EBREF (82T ¢

application of amendments to HKAS 12 on the consolidated
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
and earnings (loss) per share are as follow:

Year ended 31 Year ended 31

December 2023 December 2022
BZ2023F BZE2022F
12A31H 12A31H
ILFE LFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥T T
Impact on profit (loss) and total HEREF(BR)R2H
comprehensive income (expenses) WA (B BENSE
for the year
Decrease in income tax expense (credit) PSR (e )R 41 (209)
Increase in profit (loss) and total AT ALTREEBRET ()
comprehensive income (expenses) REEWA (F ) @FEE M -
for the period attributable to:
- Equity holders of the Company - NAFIERFFEA 26 (121)
- Non-controlling interests - FEIE AR RS 15 (88)
41 (209)
Impact on basic earnings (loss) per share ¥&ERERZER(FE)NE
(RMB Cents) (AR¥5)
Basic earnings (loss) per share TR
before adjustments %$73§7’TU(J§§T§) 1.32 (8.21)
Net adjustments arising from change SHBREDHESE
in accounting policy E’]uﬂ%ﬁ*%ﬁi - -
Reported diluted earnings (loss) 2HRFREERN (EBE)
per share as restated (#&5&31)) 1.32 (8.21)
Impact on diluted earnings per share HERBBERANTE
(RMB Cents) (AR¥Z)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share before R EREERR (ER)
adjustments 1.32 (8.21)
Net adjustments arising from change BRTBUREEELEN TR FE
in accounting policy = =
Reported diluted earnings (loss) KEY|FTIRe BREER T
per share as restated (E18) 1.32 (8.21)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. FEAHEBHEREEDN (BB

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) HEA D #®)
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily INEE R VTR RIS BB
effective for the current year (Continued) R EZER (&)

FEREBETHERF125R BRI A EE -
SEECZEEREENEREZIELER BN

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 12
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from

132

a Single Transaction (Continued) Z(%E)
The effects of change in accounting policies as a result of
application of amendments to HKAS 12 on the consolidated of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and earnings
(loss) per share, are as follows:

At 31 December

SR A B2 R A2 A DA B SRR (5
1B EREERERIE RIS AL B
REBTEWT

At 31 December

2022 Adjustments 2022
20225 A20225F
12A31H R 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR%T T AR¥T T

(as originally
stated) (Restated)
(R23%) (&=7)
Deferred tax assets EETR IR E 2= 17,606 1 17,607
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEBE - (199) (199)
Reserves EE 79,726 (110) 79,616
Non-controlling interests JEFERR A A 11,619 (88) 11,531
Total effect on equity HERNR R 91,345 (88) 91,257
Total effect on net assets HEEFENTERRE 450,685 (198) 450,487
At 1 January At 1 January
2022 Adjustments 2022
20225 A2022F
1A1H8 FE 1A1H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥T T AR¥T T

(as originally
stated) (Restated)
(RE%) (RE7)
Deferred tax assets FIEFRTBE B 14,442 11 14,453
Total effect on equity Fap EaipZ ki 116,247 11 116,258
Total effect on net assets HEEFENTEES 475,587 11 475,598
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TN

AR ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but are not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following amendments to

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback!

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
the related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation
5 (2020) Presentation of
Financial Statements -
Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand
Clause'

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Convenants'

Amendments to HKAS 7 and Supplier Finance Arrangements'
HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2025.

) Effective for annual periods beginning on or a date to be
determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
all other amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable

future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR

ARe ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited ("Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values, at the end of

each reporting period.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. Details of fair value measurement

are explained in the accounting policies set out below.
The material accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the

Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power over
the investee; (ii] exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and (iii) the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect the amount of the Group’s

returns.

The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or

more of these elements of control stated above.

3.

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. B &HE CGEI) XKD R A 7

EESHBRER

GANBRE MR E SR AAGHEGH
ERIHRE AR - 1 AN B
ROEEAWAXSFARAFCEMBS £
RRI(T ERRRD) BB A A AR
ERBEAR -

RAMBHRREREBELRAERE - 1ER
TUNEREMRIHEFEN S B TR -

JE SE AR —RRAR IR R G an MR TS P és TR
BORTEERE °

AP ERIETISSERE Y BEHE BRTH
B REA SR B  — A A AR IR 8 —
EEERE A OER  ERZERLEEE
52 5|t 5 T 2 AR PR EL A AR A 1 B
it o BRATENBOEEN T RHEE
Bt -

ERGFTERRFIIMT -
maRE

A M BRRBEARRARAR R K EH
BARENN BRI FRE

HAKEREE (HREGRHES (11K A
KREGR A OB RRSIER - K li) M8
HENFEZEORNEES - BIAEE S
HZREHR -

BAESEMBIAR Lt — {3k 2 fE i i A
ZHBREPE - AEESEMTEEREE
BIIREHR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TN

AR ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued]

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses

control of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control

until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income of
subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the

Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group's relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries including re-attribution
of relevant reserves between the Group and non-controlling
interests according to the Group's and non-controlling
interests’ proportionate interests. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted,
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the

Company.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (Continued)

Business combinations
Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets which
includes an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
acquired processes are considered substantive if they are
critical to the ability to continue producing outputs, including
an organised workforce with the necessary skills, knowledge,
or experience to perform the related processes or they
significantly contribute to the ability to continue producing
outputs and are considered unique or scarce or cannot be
replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability to

continue producing outputs.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in

profit or loss as incurred.

The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
must meet the definitions of an asset and a liability in
the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (the
“Conceptual Framework”) except for transactions and events
within the scope of HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets or HK[IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, in which
the Group applies HKIS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 instead of
the Conceptual Framework to identify the liabilities it has
assumed in a business combination. Contingent assets are not

recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TN
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued]

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except
that the lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as defined
in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were new leases at
the acquisition date, except for leases for which (a) the lease
term ends within 12 months of the acquisition date; or (b)
the underlying asset is of low value. Right-of-use assets are
recognised and measured at the same amount as the relevant
lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable

terms of the lease when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree [if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree [if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit

or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

[Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing

subsidiaries (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business

(see the accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment

losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to

each of the Group’s cash-generating units that is expected to

benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit
(or groups of cash generating units). Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment

loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent

periods.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an

associate is described below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B BT R I aE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued]

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is

not control or joint control of those policies.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
the associate is recognised as goodwill and is included in the

carrying amount of the investment.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill] is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal] with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable

amount of the investment subsequently increases.

No dividend income from the investment in an associate is
recognised when the Group’s right to receive payment has

been established.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued)

Impairment losses on plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets (other than
impairment of goodwill set out in accounting policy of
goodwill)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets with finite useful life to
determine whether there is any indication that these assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss [if any).
The recoverable amount of plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets, and intangible assets are estimated individually. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs, When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating unit, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and

consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have

not been adjusted.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued]

Impairment losses on plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets (other than
impairment of goodwill set out in accounting policy of
goodwill) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the cash generating unit]
is reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to
that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable]
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurablel, its value in use (if determinable] and zero. The
amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of
the unit or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment

loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit] is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or the cash-generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued]

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

The Group as lessee

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which at the
commencement date have a lease term less than 12 months.
The lease payments associated with those leases have been
expensed on straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group measures
lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that
are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed lease payments [including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

J variable lease payments that depend on an index or
rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the
commencement date; and

J payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

[Continued)

Leases (Continued)]

The Group as lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of
the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or
before the commencement date and any initial direct costs,

less lease incentives received.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. They are
depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful
life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the

commencement date of the lease.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item

on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis

over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.
The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
operating leases. The Group does not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying
asset, therefore, those lease are classified as operating leasing

as lessor.
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under IFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments

and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

ERETTHEER )

HE (&)
REBERFEAN(E)
EREEE

ERAREEERHABRRERRE  KNAKAEH
2k 2 BV 9 1E & A SR R AR AT ¥ 8 B B A
- OREERHERBNYILAE -

ERREEBRIZKAR R TE RRER
Bt E - UHEERERNEMENEET
HE - EAREENRENRAEEENR
ERFHzBEENE - HENEERKA
HiFRETE -

AEBESEVBRRRAREREEES
SREIBIER -

ERREENREGAERFHARERZ
BREE ABARERITE -

AEEEAEBEA
HENDBLAE

AEBELSHEANEES BALEHE -
AEEVAEREAREEMARAMNAL
FrERRNEM - Bt - ZFHENER
ERHBAANKLEEE -

REEERS

BN AR ER GRS RIBEIFR R 58 & 2R
FIRARR - WHNFRAFENE - VITHER
B 5 DT EEL ARG SRIMEER K
Wat NEFREEEMA °

2023 ANNUAL REPORT EE 4

143
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3. EEeHBEEE )

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers REEZEFEHNNNE

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised AEEBRREARBRARFER &HE R
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects R  ZeBERMEREBHARARERR
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in ZEEMBEEBSHRE -

exchange for those goods.

Specifically, the Group uses a 5-step approach to revenue HEMS @ AEEHEBRESEERKE

recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer o F—F: BRERPIIMNEH

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the o FH:HAEGHNNBENERML
contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price e F=H:EEXRHER

. Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance o  ENH : BRSEROMEAYBHE
obligations in the contract £

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity s FRF: BEER)EBTHBELEER
satisfies a performance obligation RS o

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance REETHRBLE R (St ) #ER

obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or ﬂ?é?ﬁi@%@ﬁff*ﬁ@ﬁﬂ'\]‘ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ%mH i

services underlying the particular performance obligation is | EE PR o

transferred to customers.

A performance obligation represents a good or service that BABTHEARE—NERIRBH—F
is distinct or a series of distinct goods that are substantially DI EARNMRNRAEE R °
same.
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ARE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued)]

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of the

following criteria is met:

o The customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the

Group performs;

o The Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or

enhanced; or

o The Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed

to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the distinct goods.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the

Group expects to be entitled in a contract with a customer.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods to a
customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its
promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified
goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal] or to
arrange for those goods or services to be provided by the other
party (i.e. the Group is an agent). The Group is a principal if
it controls the specified good or service before that good or
service is transferred to a customer. The Group is an agent if
its performance obligation is to arrange for the provision of
the specified good or service by another party. In this case, the
Group does not control the specified good or service provided
by another party before that good or service is transferred to
the customer. When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises
revenue in the amount of any fee or commission to which
it expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the

specified goods to be provided by the other party.
Contract assets and contract liability

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’'s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required

before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has

received consideration from the customer.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract

asset or a net contract liability is presented.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued)]

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Contract assets and contract liability (Continued)]

The Group recognised revenue from the following major

sources:

o Advisory service fee income

o Sales of goods - energy storage system

o Sales of goods - electronic products

o Energy storage solutions and general construction
Revenue for the provision of advisory services

Revenue for the provision of advisory services is recognised at

point in time when the services have been rendered.
Revenue from sales of goods - energy storage system

For revenue from sales of goods - energy storage system
provided by the Group, the Group entered the contract with the
customers. The Group determined that revenue from sales
of goods is recognised at point in time when the goods are

delivered to and have been accepted.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continued]
Revenue from sales goods - electronic products

For revenue from sales of goods - electronic products
provided by the Group, the Group entered the contract with the
customers. The Group determined that revenue from sales
of goods is recognised at point in time when the goods are

delivered to and have been accepted by customers.
Revenue from energy storage solution and general contraction

The Group has determined that for contracts with customers
for the provision of energy storage solution and general
construction, which refer to the construction of energy
storage system. Such contracts are entered into before the
services begin. Under the terms of the contracts, the Group
is contractually required to perform the construction works
and services at the customers’ specified sites that the Group's
performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs. Revenue from provision of
such construction works and services (including materials and
equipment, construction services and design and consultancy
services components) is therefore recognised over time using
input method, i.e. based on the actual costs incurred by the
Group to date compared with the total budgeted cost for the
project to estimate the revenue recognised during the year. The
management of the Group considers that input method would
faithfully depict the Group's performance obligation under
HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B BT R I aE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3. EE@:EHEFEER (&)
[Continued)]

HA R A W
BRARR D NREDE

B S —REEMAMKED k—EZHE
MESCFHEERBINANME - A%E

Revenue from other sources
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group

allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease RIBHSEXI D NBEBLERLIFEE
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the BB EFT B BRELEEGHRE

DEERHEBEEEARED °

lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components.

As a practical expedient, HKFRS 16 permits a lessee not to ERERER LA  BBMBHmELERFE16
separate non-lease components, and instead account for SKAABATNEIERERKILD P - M
any lease and associated non-lease components as a single ERAEMEERBAFEETS S IERE—%
arrangement. HEARR o

Finance leases income BEHEEUA

1R 5w & T & PR BURFE A SRIB IR AN S E A
recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group's net EMFRESHERRARBKIE - IEHRE
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to WADEEZEeHE  UWrREBAEBEHEE
ANEEREFENEE A EHRE -

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are

accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the Group's net investment outstanding in respect of
the leases.

Income from sale-leaseback transactions

The Group act as a buyer-lessor

For a transfer of asset that does not satisfy the requirements
of HKFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale of asset, the Group
as a buyer-lessor does not recognise the transferred asset and
recognises account receivables equal to the transfer proceeds

within the scope of HKFRS 9.

Factoring income

EREETZ WA
AEBERET—HEA

A EBBUMBREERE1SHRERKAR
ABRIIEEERENEEERMS * A5E
EREN—HBAATHRCEREE @ Wi
RO o B 7% S 5 2 R 56 9 51 8 [ P B o Wi
MR HY YR -

RIBUIA

&R B H (R IZ AR B IR AL BB 22 B

The Group's factoring income arise from the provision of

factoring services to companies located in the PRC. RARIZARTS o

Energy storage service income fRBERRFE WA

The Group, as a lessor, accounts for the provision of energy AEB(MEAEAAN) BIREMEERBEAKRAS
storage service as operating lease, such revenue is recognised LETE AW TR E R AR 25
over the lease period with variable lease payment. Variable ERNERRER o WIERIEE — sk th Ry a]
lease payment not based on index or rate are recognised as FHHENRTNELRFEZSRA -

revenue as incurred.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued]

Revenue from other sources (Continued)
Provision of 5G base stations site space

The Group, as a lessor, accounts for the provision of 5G
base stations site space as operating lease, such revenue is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease period. Lease

payments are fixed.
Intangible asset
Intangible asset acquired separately

Intangible asset with finite useful lives that is acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible asset with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes

in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses,

if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in

estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognised in profit or loss.

ERETTHEER )

H R s ()
1R{SGE UL Z M5

AEBE(ERLHEAN) SR HECE S 2=/
EREEHEAR  AEKRENHERFR
BARERER - HEMNKBEER -

BILEE
BYWBNETLEE

BYWBREEREAFHNELEERK
TRBEEREMNRAREBBEALRK - &
BERERFHNETLEEREGHERF
HIPAB ARORTER M SH o fh et 3 S 8 5H
TERBREHMRTAERN - LEEA G
B EILATE AR -

EESE T

P55 B R AR IR A AR EL & ) RET T E ) RET
BAEETR (0B )N A MR KTIRR

HERITEDRE ERARE AT RERN G
SR RFERABGEME - REBESHR
HEBGRT A EAFER - MREERTES
& AR RREMIAH 2B 2 8 -

B MR EEBE N M ER KB RHEERE
ETSELRKEENRFIURER - HE
KIREEYIR - WS MR iRIE B EE TR
BNEEAHEMSFEEEERAELRE
MZERR - WNBRARMER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued)]

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated

statement of financial position include:
(a) cash and bank balance; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months or less),
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to
a known amount of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash equivalents
are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash
commitments rather than for investment or other

purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents

as defined above.
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories are determined on a first in, first out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale. Cost necessary to make
the sale include incremental cost directly attributable to the
sale and non-incremental costs which the Group must incur to

make the sale.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and

deferred income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination] of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit and at the time of the
transaction does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible

temporary differences.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H 1 F/Z

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued]

Taxation (Continued)]

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and

they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available

to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and

liabilities.

ERETTHEER )

BIR(E)
EEHBARBRDZEARMBARNKRE - 1

BENR LG BRI 5 B BRI
ER R MER - FRIFANEE AR T
EZROBR O R TR ZRERAT BN A B AR
RO o MZEREARN AT R E
BAEEREERAEE  ERRATER R
SRFE SR T ) AT LA BT S R RO A s AL TR
HRR BT R A6 SR AT LA SRS (o] 5 R,

BEERIERE 2 RHESNESREPRET
WAf - WA BRI BEA & MR TE M AR
Wm Ak #l D B ERRIELIRD

EERIRE E N B EARSE HRATE R
B FEEMORE(RBUR) RER - 28
HBEZRERERZEENRERMNDER

CEE

EEHBRRREENERRAKEER
SHMRBEHUCOHBEEEER B EREE
BT AT RR o

2023 ANNUAL REPORT EE 4

153



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BT R IR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z2023F 12531 H I F/Z

154

FY FINANCIAL (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. EfR @& E CFI) RO BER A 7

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued)]

Taxation (Continued)]

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to

settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements to the lease liabilities and the related assets
separately. The Group recognises a deferred tax asset related
to lease liabilities to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be utilised and a deferred tax liability for all

taxable temporary differences.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
[Continued]

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and

when employees rendered the services.
Retirement benefits costs

Payments to stage-managed retirement benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered

services entitling them to the contributions.
Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of
financial position of the Company at cost less accumulated

impairment loss.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially

ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowings costs are recognised as expenses in the

period in which they are incurred.
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